Region V Systems
Promoting Comprehensive Partnerships in Behavioral Health

Regional Governing Board
AGENDA (Revised)
February 12, 2024
At Apace, 3600 Union Drive, Lincoln, NE
10:15 am. (Hybrid) https://regionvservices.zoom.us/i/88567627692
Phone: 402-441-4343 -Webpage: www.region5¢y slems.net

ALL RGB MEETINGS ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AND ARE AUDIOTAPED

AGENDA ITEM ACTION NEEDED PAGE
1. Housekeeping Discussion NIA
2. Open Meetings Act Information ...t i s et Discussion Posted
3o RO Call ...t She st b et bt e bt b et bRt b e e b e et b e e b e nenas Call the Roll NIA
4. Approve Agenda Motion NIA
5. Public Comment Discussion NIA
6. Network Provider Presentation - Ed Thornbrugh, The Bridge Behavioral Health...................... Discussion NIA
7. Kim Freese, Regional Director, SAMHSA, Region VII Discussion NIA
8. Action /Priority Items
A. ElECtioN O OffiCOIS . iiiiiiiiiiiiii i b et e e Motion(s) 1
B. November 13, 2023, Regional Governing Board Minutes........cocveirniinisineseneneenesieenees Motion 2-6
(G2 LTI T o Lor o1 =Y oY o AP SRSS Motion 7-10
D. FY 23-24 Contractual AgreemMentsS. ... iieireiiiieierieeseeesieesiss s s Motion(s) 11-12

* American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
*  Network Provider Amendments

*  Software

®  Training

E. FY 22-23 Financial Audit - HBE ..o . Motion Attached
F. FY 22-23 Management Summary DRAFT ... Motion Attached
G. FY 23-24 Network Performance Improvement Plan DRAFT ........ccccviiiiiinininincicinenens Motion Attached
H. FYs 20-23 Prevention Programmatic Monitoring Report ..........ccccooiveviniiniiniinincininncns . Motion 13-16
L FY22 Financial Audit Report - Revised Final .........cccoiiiiiiiiiiic . Motion 17-30
J. FY23 Network Compliance Monitoring REPOIt ..........cccereeieiiiriiriininisiesesieeeee s Motion 31-32
K. Interlocal Agreement

®  THMELINE ettt . Discussion RS

®  RESOIULION ... e Motion R

9. Other Updates / Information

A. Behavioral Health 7 Legislative Updates..........ccccovriieiininniniiinnseecsisnse s Discussion NIA

* Potential $15 Million Reduction to BH Region's Allocation

* January 9, 2024, Meeting with CEO Dr. Steve Corsi

* DHHS Discussions ofReorganization - CFS and "Long Term Services"
B. Behavioral Health Workforce Stabilization Funds Update ...........cccvireieeiinininiiiieiesenene s Discussion NIA
(G2 Medicaid UNWING.....cc.eiiiiiiiiiieieiee et n e sn e n s e e e nne s . Discussion NIA
D. Square One and Voluntary Crisis Response CENter ...........coouiiirinieieeieeienieseseseeseesee e . Discussion NIA
E. DBH Telehealth and Phone ServiCes ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiciininin e Discussion 35-36
F. DBH Core Service REQUITEMENLS ......cccviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniinrcsese s . Discussion 37-38
G. Strategic Planning SeSSIONS.........cccciiiiiriiiiiiiii e Discussion NIA
H. Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic (CCBHC) Implementation............cccccevurueuene Discussion NIA
L Emergency System Update s s s e o i ot ciimmme: oot oo Whvvssk soowss e300 7700 g 5703 45 w4 g s Discussion NIA
J. Prevention SYStem UPAate ... . ciccuaeamsesrimme s iesmstesbasiinss essh e v saasiig s oo Fibsas nssagpn s sassine Discussion NIA
K. Opioid Remediation Settlement FUNAS UPAALe ........cccevveruerieeeeeinisesesiesiesiesseseeesesessessesne e Discussion NIA
I8 Network Continuous Quality IMProvemMent..........ccecveeririeriirieiieieeesese e Discussion NIA
M. FY 23-24 Capacity Utilization SUMMATIEs ..........cceeueverieriinisienieiieieeiesese s s . Discussion 39-58
N. FY 23-24 Network Management Report Discussion 5961
0. November 13, 2023 RGB Executive COmMmittee MINULES .....ccveveeriririeiienieiesisesreseseeseeeene s Information Only 62
P. Wellbeing Initiative Quarterly Report Q2 ..........cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i Information Only 63-64
Q. FY 23-24 Training PIan ........c.cocoiiiiiiiiiiicci e Information Only ~ 65-67

10. Important Dates
February 26-Network Provider Meeting-9:00 am. -Teams

e  February 28 - BHAC Meeting - 10:00 am. - Hybrid/ Region V Systems, 1645 N Street, Lincoln, NE
e March ¥4 - 9:00 am. - Regional Prevention Coalition

* March 11 -RGB Meeting-10:15 am. -Hybrid /Region V Systems, 1645 N Street, Lincoln, NE

e March 11 - RGB Executive Committee Meeting


https://regionvservices.zoom.us/j/88567627692
https://region5systems.net/

ACT Team
ARPA
ASO

BH

BHAC
BHECN
CAG
CARF

CCBHC
CBC
CCT
CDS
CFS
CHE
CLAS

CMS
COD
CPC
CQI
CRT
DBH
DBT
DHHS
DSH
EBC
EHR
EMDR

EMR
EPC
ERCS
FFS
FIF
FTE
FYI
HIPAA

HOPE
HPRP

HUD
IMD
ITN
JBC
LINCS

LRC
MH
MHB
MHFA
MHSIP

NABHO
NACO

NAMI
NDRA

ALDIDINIL Y 1/ L AVJIND

General Terms

Assertive Community Treatment / PIER

American Rescue Plan Act

Administrative Service Organization

Behavioral Health

Behavioral Health Advisory Committee

Behavioral Health Education Center of NE

Capacity Access Guarantee

Commission on Accreditation of
Rehabilitation Facilities

Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic

Community Benefits Center

Corporate Compliance Team

Centralized Data System

Children and Family Services

Community Health Endowment

Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Services

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services

Co-occurring Disorder

Civil Protective Custody

Continuous Quality Improvement

Crisis Response Team

Division of Behavioral Health

Dialectical Behavioral Therapy

Department of Health & Human Services

Disproportionate Share Hospital

Evidence Based Practices

Electronic Health Record

Eye Movement Desensitization and
Reprocessing

Electronic Medical Record

Emergency Protective Custody

Emergency Community Support

Fee for Service

Families Inspiring Families

Full-Time Equivalent (Staff)

Family & Youth Investment

Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996

Higher Opportunities Through the Power
of Employment

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid
Re-housing Program

Housing and Urban Development

Institutions for Mental Disease

Intent to Negotiate

Joint Budget Commission

Linking Individuals/Families in Need of
Community Supports

Lincoln Regional Center

Mental Health

Mental Health Board

Mental Health First Aid

Mental Health Statistics Improvement
Program

National Association of Behavioral Health
Organizations

Nebraska Association of County Officials

National Alliance on Mental Illness

Nebraska Disaster Response Adult

NFES
NMT
NOMS

NPP
OCO
OTO
PATH

PIER
PIP
PPP
PRR
QPR

REAL
RFA

RFP

RFQ
RGB
RPC

RPH
RPSC
RQIT
SAMHSA

SAVE
SCIP
SED
SMI
SOC
SOR
SPF
SPMI
SUD
TAPP
TASC
TAY
TIC
VCRC

ACT
BVBH
BBH
Catpt
GW
HS
HOH
IBHS
LFS
MHA
MHCC
ML
ST.M'S
TC

General Terms (continued)

Non-Fee-for-Service / Expense Reimbursement

Network Management Team

National Outcome Measures

Network Provider

Nebraska Partnership Project

Office of Consumer Affairs

One-time-only

Projects for Assistance of Transition from
Homelessness

Partners in Empowerment and Recovery (ACT)

Performance Improvement Plan

Prevention Professional Partner

Psychiatric Residential Rehabilitation

Question, Persuade, Refer

Regional Administrator

Rental Assistance Program

Respond, Empower, Advocate, Listen

Request for Approval

Request for Proposals

Request for Qualifications

Regional Governing Board

Regional Prevention Center

Rural Permanent Housing

Regional Prevention System Coordination

Regional Quality Improvement Team

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration

Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements

School Community Intervention Program

Serious Emotional Disturbance

Serious Mental Illness

System of Care

Statewide Opioid Response

Strategic Prevention Framework

Serious and Persistent Mental Illness

Substance Use Disorder

Transition Age Professional Partner

Targeted Adult Service Coordination

Transition Age Youth

Trauma Informed Care

Voluntary Crisis Response Center

Wellness Recovery Action Plan

Funded Agencies

Associates in Counselling and Treatment
Blue Valley Behavioral Health

The Bridge Behavioral Health
CenterPointe

Goodwill Industries

HopeSpoke

Houses of Hope

Integrated Behavioral Health Services
Lutheran Family Services

Mental Health Association

Mental Health Crisis Center

Mary Lanning Hospital

St. Monica's

Telecare Recovery Center



Election of Officers - Regional Governing Board

February 12, 2024
Agenda Item

2023 Officers and BHAC Representative:

NAME

POSITION

Gale A. Pohlmann

Board Chair / Executive Committee

John Caverzagie Vice Chair / Executive Committee
Christa Yoakum Secretary / Executive Committee
Jan Lang Treasurer / Executive Committee

Gale A. Pohlmann

BHAC Representative




REGIONAL GOVERNING BOARD

REGION V SYSTEMS
MINUTES

November 13, 2023

Apace
3600 Union Drive
Lincoln, NE
10:15 a.m.

MEMBERS Kenny Harre, Fillmore County; Emily Haxby, Gage County; Gale Pohlmann, Jefferson County:

PRESENT: Les Agena, Johnson County; Christa Yoakum, Lancaster County; Dan Crownover, Otoe
County; Jan Lang, Pawnee County; John Caverzagie, Richardson County; Janet Henning,
Saline County; Bill Reece, Saunders County; Ken Schmieding, Seward County; Dean Krueger,
Thayer County

MEMBERS Ryan Svoboda, Butler County; Michael Weiss, Nemaha County; Jerry Westring, Polk County;
ABSENT: Stan Boehr, York County

OTHERS Brenda Mueller, Marv. Chauza, Houses of Hope; Tami DeShon, Renee' Dozier, Theresa
PRESENT: Henning, Patrick Kreifels, Kristin Nelson, Amanda Tyerman-Harper, Marti Rabe, Region V
Systems

HOUSEKEEPING / CALL TO ORDER
Caverzagie called the meeting to order at 10:25 a.m.

OPEN MEETINGS ACT INFORMATION

Caverzagie noted the Open Meetings Act information is posted ini the meeting room and reminded Board members
that the meetings are open to the public and are audiotaped. The agenda is posted for public viewing at
region5systems.net. Notification of this meeting and information regarding availability of the agenda was
provided through a legal notice in the Lincoln Journal Star, published November 5, 2023.

ROLL CALL / AGENDA
Roll call followed. A quorum was present.

Present: Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Johnson County, Lancaster County, Otoe County,
Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer
County

Absent: Butler County, Nemaha County, Polk County, York County

Lang made a motion, seconded by Crownover, to approve the November 13, 2023, agenda. Voting aye were
Fillmore County, Gage County, Jefferson County, Johnson County, Lancaster County, Otoe County, Pawnee
County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer County; nays nore; absent
Butler County, Nemaha County, Polk County. Motion carried.

PUBLIC COMMENT
There was no public comment.

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION

e Caverzagie recognized two Region V employees for five years of service. Kayla Lathrop’s current position
is Prevention Specialist and Cherie Teague’s current position is Professional Partner. Caverzagie highlighted
these individuals’ responsibilities, recognized their strengths, and thanked them for their dedicated service to
Region V Systems.




November 13, 2023
Regional Governing Board Meeting Minutes
Page 2 of 5

PROVIDER PRESENTATION — BRENDA MUELLER — HOUSES OF HOPE.

Mueller discussed the three levels of care provided by Houses of Hope (HH) — Halfway House, Touchstone,
and TASC. In total HH served over 1,000 individuals last year.

Halfway House has been in existence for 61 years. There are three houses, each with a capacity of 12.
Programming is focused on helping clients develop skills needed to maintain a life in recovery. Average
length of stay is six months.

Touchstone, a short-term residential substance abuse treatment program, was established in 1999 in
collaboration with CenterPointe. Capacity for Touchstone is 20 and men and women are served. Forty-two
hours of weekly programming, including therapy, education, relapse prevention, case management, nursing
services, and others are focused on community reintegration and support.

Targeted Adult Service Coordination (TASC) is a collaboration among Houses of Hope, Lutheran Family
Services, Blue Valley Behavioral Health, and The Bridge Behavioral Health which began in 2005. TASC
provides community based case management services through Crisis Response Teams, Emergency
Community Support, Bilingual/Bicultural Service Coordination, Intensive Care Management, and Recovery
Support.

EMERGENCY SYSTEM PRESENTATION — KRISTIN NELSON

Nelson provided an overview of the emergency system and the many services and programs designed to
resolve crises using the least restrictive approach. Some of the services and interventions in place include
988, BETA training, mobile crisis response; providing a licensed social worker at Mental Health Crisis Center
(MHCC), and expanded peer support. New initiatives include the Voluntary Crisis Response Center, Youth
and Family Crisis Response Center (Square One), the “Stepping Up” initiative, and development of a
Recovery & Wellness Engagement & Outreach Center.

Despite these many interventions, the emergency system faces some challenges due to lack of access to
Lincoln Regional Center (LRC) beds. The average wait for someone committed inpatient to LRC is 43.6
days. As a result, MHCC is often full, which results in more pressure on jails, community hospitals and law
enforcement.

Nelson discussed 988, the behavioral health hotline. 988 was, unfortunately, misbranded as a suicide hotline,
and it has taken some time to get the word out that 988 is designed for anyone to call and talk to a trained
counsellor who can either resolve thie concern, deescalate the situation, help the caller create a safely plan,
provide information and resources, or activate mobile crisis if indicated. Utilization is up to 70 calls a month
as awareness of this resource increases. ‘

Behavioral Health Threat Assessment (BETA): BETA is designed to increase awareness and skills for law
enforcement when encountering someone who is having a mental health crisis. To date over 1,500 individuals
have attended a BETA training. Law enforcement is the target audience, but system partners are included in
these trainings. Each year there are two four-day BETA trainings with two one-day (mini) BETAs scheduled
for rural counties.

Nelson’s PowerPoint slide deck will be sent to Board members to provide more information.

ACTION / PRIORITY ITEMS

Regional Governing Board Minutes, June 12, 2023: Henning made a motion, seconded by Lang, to approve
the minutes of the September 11, 2023, meeting as presented. Voting aye were Fillmore County, Jefferson County,
Johnson County, Lancaster County, Otoe County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders
County, Seward County, Thayer County; nays none; absent Butler County, Gage County, Nemaha County, Polk
County, York County. Motion carried.

Financial Report:

DeShon presented the financial report through September, briefly reviewing income and expenditures. The
highlighted areas represent one-time costs such as subscriptions, and other amounts that fluctuate throughout
the year such as advertising and salaries. These line items will be monitored closely, and it is anticipated that
these line items will fall in line with the budget by the end of the fiscal year. DeShon reported that with 25
percent of the fiscal year completed, total expenditures stand at 27.4 percent and are approximately two and
a half percent over budget.

Agena made a motion, seconded by Yoakum, to approve the financial report as presented. Voting aye were
Fillmore County, Jefferson County, Johnson County, Lancaster County, Otoe County, Pawnee County,



November 13, 2023
Regional Governing Board Meeting Minutes
Page 3 of 5

Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer County; nays none; absent
Butler County, Gage County, Nemaha County, Polk County, York County. Motion carried.

FY 23-24 Contractual Agreements: Henning presented contracts in the following categories:

Evidence Based Practice: These three contracts relate to Dialectic Behavior Therapy training and
consultation. Reece made a motion, seconded by Lang, to approve the Evidence Based Practice contracts as
presented. Voting aye were Fillmore County, Jefferson County, Johnson County, Lancaster County, Otoe
County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer
County; nays none; absent Butler County, Gage County, Nemaha County, Polk County, York County. Motion
carried.

Network Provider: These contracts represent an increase in contract amounts for Telecare, IBHS, and ACT
based on utilization. Harre made a motion, seconded by Yoakum, to approve the Network Provider contracts
as presented. Voting aye were Fillmore County, Jefferson County, Johnson County, Lancaster County, Otoe
County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer
County; nays none; absent Butler County, Gage County, Nemaha County, Polk County, York County. Motion
carried.

Prevention: These contracts provide for WRAP training by Wellbeing Initiative and a change in dollar
amounts for Community Coalitions to utilize Substance Abuse and Mental Health Service Administration
(SAMHSA) strategic prevention strategies to address substance abuse prevention and mental health
promotion. Henning made a motion, seconded by Schmieding, to approve the Prevention contracts as
presented. Voting aye were Fillmore County, Jefferson County, Johnson County, Lancaster County, Otoe
County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer
County; nays none; absent Butler County, Gage County, Nemaha County, Polk County, York County. Motion
carried.

Statewide Opioid Response (SOR): The contract with CenterPointe is for the purpose of providing medication
and other supports for substance use disorder and the remainder of the contracts are related to media /
awareness activities. Lang made a motion, seconded by Agena, to approve the Statewide Opioid Response
contracts as presented. Voting aye were Fillmore County, Jefferson County, Johnson County, Lancaster
County, Otoe County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward
County, Thayer County; nays none; absent Butler County, Gage County, Nemaha County, Polk County, York
County. Motion carried.

Other: The contract with Lancaster County will provide funding for a new position for the Stepping Up
initiative with the goal of reducing the number of persons with mental health challenges who are incarcerated,;
the contracts with Wellbeing Initiative will provide for the development of a Recovery & Wellness
Engagement & Outreach Center. Yoakum made a motion, seconded by Crownover, to approve the Other
contracts as presented. Voting aye were Fillmore County, Jefferson County, Johnson County, Lancaster
County, Otoe County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward
County, Thayer County; nays none; absent Butler County, Gage County, Nemaha County, Polk County. York
County. Motion carried.

FY 22-23 Annual Report (draft):

Kreifels commented that Rourke oversees the process of publishing the Annual Report though the Report is
a collaborative effort from all employees. Kreifels briefly highlighted various areas of the Annual Report,
noting that Page 5 — Fiscal Transparency — has been updated and the numbers are believed to be close to
actuals, When the audit is completed by the end of November any additional changes will be made and the
Board will be advised of those changes.

Y oakum made a motion, seconded by Lang, to approve the preliminary FY 22-23 Annual Report pending the
final fiscal audit. Voting aye were Fillmore County, Jefferson County, Johnson County, Lancaster County,
Otoe County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer
County; nays none; absent Butler County, Gage County, Nemaha County, Polk County, York County. Motion
carried.

Youth and Family Crisis Response Center — Square One Recipient Award:

Dozier discussed the lengthy process which led to this motion item. The project will be funded through a
collaboration with Lancaster County and the City of Lincoln to provide capital construction. This service
aligns with SAMHSA best practices and has been an identified gap in the system for 20 years. Two agencies



November 13, 2023 :
Regional Governing Board Meeting Minutes
Page 4 of §

submitted proposals. Yoakum and Reece, who sat on the review committee, commented that both proposals
were good, but the scoring of the committee placed CenterPointe at the top.

On behalf of the review committee Yoakum made a motion, seconded by Agena, to accept the
recommendation of the committee and award CenterPointe with the contract for this service. Roll call vote
followed. Voting aye were Fillmore County, Jefferson County, Johnson County, Lancaster County, Otoe
County, Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer
County; nays none; absent Butler County, Gage County, Nemaha County, Polk County. York County. Motion
carried.

Revised Compensation Policy:

Kreifels noted that Michael has done the majority of work on this revision, and the Executive Committee has
reviewed it and recommended approval. Kreifels explained that the Region has been using a grade and step
salary process and the changes to this policy will move the Region away from that process and provide more
flexibility which will aid in recruiting and retaining staff. Under the new policy, if adopted, all employees
who have satisfactory evaluations would receive the same percentage point raise. In addition, the new policy
will eliminate new hire probation as it relates to annual raises.

Henning made a motion, seconded by Pohlmann, to approve the revised Compensation Policy as presented.
Discussion followed. Kreifels explained the process that is used to verify that employees are eligible for a
raise. Voting aye were Fillmore County, Jefferson County, Johnson County, Lancaster County, Otoe County,
Pawnee County, Richardson County, Saline County, Saunders County, Seward County, Thayer County; nays
none; absent Butler County, Gage County, Nemaha County, Polk County, York County. Motion carried.

OTHER UPDATES / LEGISLATION / INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

RGB Revised Bylaws: Kreifels stated that it had been the intention of the Region to bring revised bylaws to this
meeting; however, due to the need to evaluate the interlocal agreement, Region V Systems will collaborate with
Apace to revise the bylaws. The Executive Committee will review the bylaws when they have been revised and
the document will be brought to the February or March Board meeting.

September 11 Executive Committee Meeting Minutes: These minutes are provided for informational purposes.

Behavioral Health / Legislative Updates: Kreifels presented the following information:

e

LB276, introduced by Senator Wishart, provides for the adoption of Certified Community Behavioral Health
Clinics (CCBHCs). The Regions have engaged with Kim Freese, Area Director of SAMHSA, to help the
Regions learn about the system transformation that will result and the impact that will have on Regions and
providers. CenterPointe and Lutheran Family Services received grant funding to implement the CCBHC
model which provides comprehensive care. Freese will attend the February Board meeting to provide
information. Kreifels is urging the Nebraska Department of Health & Human Services-Medicaid/Behavioral
Health Divisions to apply for an implementation grant in 2025 which is a prerequisite for federal approval
and to be eligible for a twelve percent higher Medicaid federal match to Nebraska for four years.

Dr. Steve Corsi was appointed as the new Chief Executive for the Department of Health and Human Services
(DHHS), beginning September 1. Governor Pillen announced the appointment of Dr. Alyssa Bish as the
Director of Children and Family Services for DHHS. Dr. Bish will start on Dec. 28.

A number of approaches have been implemented to reduce stress on the emergency system. A bill introduced
by Senator Hanson to do a study to determine the number of psychiatric beds at Lincoln Regional Center and
private hospitals needed for the system passed last session. An RFP was issued, providing $50,000 to
complete the study. There was only one applicant, and their price tag was $80,000. Efforts are underway with
the lobbyist to provide a path for this study to move forward. The study is to be presented to the Legislature
in November of 2024. ’

On December 6, 2023, the Regional Administrators and NABHO Executive Director Dubas will meet with
Senators to talk about behavioral health challenges and gaps and needs in the system.

Kreifels stated that the Regional Administrators have been invited to attend the NACO conference.

Behavioral Health Stabilization Funds Update: These funds have been allocated, and initial data shows an
overall five percent reduction in staff vacancies. The data shows a six percent reduction for non-licensed staff and
a three percent reduction for licensed staff.



November 13, 2023
Regional Governing Board Meeting Minutes
Page Sof §

Medicaid Unwind: Nebraska’s disenrollment rate is at 30%, which is lower than the nationwide average. Data
shows that 47 percent of the disenrollments are the result of procedural issues. Providers are seeing a small uptick
in the number of individuals who are not Medicaid eligible.

Voluntary Crisis Response Center: Tyerman-Harper stated that Integrated Behavioral Health Services (IBHS),
which was awarded this contract, has made an offer that was accepted and plans to close on a property by mid-
January. The consensus is that the property is in a good location as it was previously used as a residential
healthcare facility, so it is hoped that zoning will not be a concern, which should save time by avoiding a public
hearing. A program manager has been hired.

Opioid Settlement Funds:

e Henning stated that members for a subcommittee are being selected with the first meeting of this group set
for November 28. Henning asked Board members to consider sitting on this committee. Yoakum expressed
interest and agreed to participate if schedule conflicts could be resolved. The subcommittee will be
responsible for creating a plan for how to use these funds, review the charter and develop a blueprint for
moving forward.

e There will be a two-day summit at Wilderness Ridge on March 19-20, 2024, with the Opioid Response
Network. The Board was invited to attend. Registration information will be provided when it is available.

e An environmental scan will be conducted to ensure that the Region’s strategies enhance the efforts of other
entities and avoid duplication of efforts.

o Kreifels expressed concerns that a statewide RFP was issued, and if there were awards in the Region V
catchment area, that would draw funds from the Region’s allocation. More information to come as the Region
monitors this concern.

Regional Prevention Coalition (RPC): Kreifels reported that the Attorney General is cracking down on
marketing practices aimed at youth and misleading labeling for products which may contain harmful chemicals.

Network Continuous Quality (CQI) Improvement: The following documents were provided for informational
purposes.

FY 23 Zero Suicide Report

FY 22-23 Q3 Quality File Review Report

FY 22-23 Ineligibles and Denials Report (& Multi-year review)

FY 22-23 Complaints, Appeals, Critical Incident Report

FY 22-23 National Outcome Measures

FY 22-23 Stable Living & Employment at Discharge

FY 22-23 Perception of Care

FY 22-23 Recovery Outcomes

® © © @ © © & o

Informational Items: The following documents were provided for informational purposes.
o FY 23-24 Capacity Utilization Summaries
e FY 23-24 Network Compliance Management Report
o  Wellbeing Initiative Quarterly Report Q1
FY 23-24 Training Plan

Other Business: None.

IMPORTANT DATES

¢ November 13 — Executive Committee Meeting
November 20 — Network Provider Meeting — 9:00 a.m.
January 31 — BHAC Meeting — 10:00 a.m.

February 12 — RGB Meeting — 10:15 a.m:

ADJOURN
There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 12:32 p.m.



Region V Systems

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2023
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash - Checking $ 1,637,531.68
Cash - Opioid Seftlement Funds 2,562,381.91
Cash - CD 260,677.08
Cash - Petty Cash 100.00
Cash - Section 125 8,937.93
Cash - YAB 7,061.18
Accounts Receivable 1,566,886.99
A/R - Other 5
Prepaid Expenses 740.00
Section 125 - Deposit 4.874.00
Total Current Assets $  6,049,190.77
Property and Equipment

Furniture & Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation

Total Property and Equipment
Other Assets
Total Other Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Current Liabilities
A/P - Insurance
A/P - Other
Accrued Vacation
Flex Funds
Suspense

Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities
Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Capital

General Fund

Federal - Homeless Funds
Federal - SPF/PFS

Federal - HUD RPH Funds
Federal - SOC Grant Funds
Federal - Opioid Grant Funds
Federal - SPG Funds

RPH Client Funds

SAAC Coalition

Lancaster Co Mtg Funds
SPG (Non-Grant) Funds
SPF/PFS (non-Fed) Funds
CHE Grant Funds

State Fund

State - Prof Partner Funds
State - One Time Funds

State - Fund (prior yr)

State - Suicide Prev. Funds
State - Native American Fund
State - Transition Grant Fund
State - Consumer Coal. Fund
Equipment Fund

YAB Fund

Retained Earnings

Net Income / (Loss)

Total Capital

Total Liabilities & Capital

908,957.32
(766.593.90)

5 142,363.42

_—

$  6.191,554.19

18,135.09
7,629.68
365,131.85
(19,467.75)
13,534.02

3 384,962.89

—ee

$ 384,962.89

999,676.87
21,704.00

(179'.18)

1,716.40

85,594.97
4,177.35
1,188.66

114.66

82,771.02

96,304.24
7,637.24

6,323,203.30
(1,817,324.23)

S 580659130




Region V Systems
Income Statement

For the Six Months Ending December 31, 2023

Current Month Current Month Year to Date Year to Date
This Year Last Year This Year Last Year
Revenues
Federal - SUD 137,085.26 $ 9736857 § 541,73123 $ 507,773 86
Federal - BH Prev Coord 22,488.27 2441851 141,867.20 122,092 55
Federal - MH 28,284.78 23,351.24 160,349.73 170,867.55
Federal ARPA- MH 3,550.00 6,403.75 19,232.00 40,775.00
State - BH Region Admin 43,091,76 45,759.59 362,168.20 274,557.54
State - BH PP-TAPP 34,573.44 37,762.20 225,807.78 236,013.75
State - BH PP - PPP 17,286.72 9,440.55 104,800.74 63,985.95
State - BH CQI Coord 23,711.00 27,037.24 163,890.02 162,223 .44
State - BH General 887,740.83 473,925 46 4,356,617.90 3,807,522.51
State - BH Youth Coord 6,378.32 7,774.44 34,947.06 46,646.64
State - BH Prevention Coord 0.00 0.00 0.00 2441851
State - BH PP - Trad 110,202.84 119,580.30 452,695.98 350,368.44
State - BH Consumer Coord 11,365.83 12,295 85 70,603.41 73,775.10
State - BH Disaster Coord 1,484.90 1,734.00 10,597.40 10,404.00
State - BH Emerg Coord 10,177.27 9,87525 64,370.23 59,251.50
State - BH Housing Coord 16,776.40 14,754.42 105,059.56 88,526.52
Federal - BH PP - Trad 0.00 0.00 217,164.42 302,975.00
State - BH Housing Coord - TA 1,298.30 962.50 8,13038 5,775.00
State - BH Prev Training 0.00 0.00 0.00 40,00
State - Prob PP 1,100.00 0.00 8,730.00 0.00
County - SA 10,247.75 12,784.00 118,318 50 147,604.00
County - MH 56,950.83 71,071.08 523,053.48 648,757.98
Federal - Homeless 5,416.00 5,416.00 32,496.00 27,040.00
State - Housing MH 85,820.53 58,162.97 418,647.15 340,681.69
State - Housing MH - TA 27,922.17 30,570.99 132,168.33 158,642.89
EPC - CMHC-LC 31,442.00 22,684.00 76,900.00 49,250.00
EPC - BBH 0.00 0,00 0.00 (102.00)
Grant Income - Opioid SOR 0.00 0,00 53,894.20 14,176 85
Grant Income - LPH 14,572.40 30,126.06 97,586.11 58,961.01
Grant Income - Suicide Prev 72520 18,209.45 93,594.34 37,101.15
Grant Income - RPH 0.00 55,931.33 92,581.17 101,944.51
Grant Income - Host Homes HUD 0.00 12,874 29 38,357 14 58,547.28
Grant Income - MHFA 1,109.15 000 16,637 25 18,855.55
Grant Income - VR/BH 1,451.67 000 1,451.67 0.00
Grant Income - SPF/PFS 0.00 0.00 120,122.43 131,301.49
Intra-Agency Transfer 9,629.43 10,253.49 57,776.58 61,520.94
[nterest Income Admin 1231 930 76,48 (303.18)
CBC Bldg Prinr Rent Income 458387 3,774.43 27,503.22 28,496.09
CBC Bldg Prtnr Salary Income 4,092.32 1,931.46 2424559 11,588.76
CBC Bldg Prtnr Other Reimb Sve 1,648.29 42,429.26 50,371.72 49,576.76
Misc--YAB 716.35 0.00 3,12135 4,991.00
Misc - Other 3,465.34 0.00 5,715.56 11,970.18
Misc - Other 2,000.00 0.00 20,498.87 17,597.08
Admin Svcs Income 0.00 0.00 5,977.42 0.00
Training Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,379.66
Admin Services Inc-CABHI 1,050.00 250,00 4.950.00 500.00
Total Revenues 1,619,451.53 1,288,921 98 9,064,807 80 §,328,072.55
Cost of Sales
Totat Cost of Sales 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Gross Profit 1,619.451.53 1,288.921.98 9,064,807.80 832807255
Substance Abuse Payments
OP-Child Total 3,377.34 3,756.78 17,960.16 20,085.53
Short-Term Total 21,228.75 53,036.40 123,657.30 185,995.04
SUD - Respite Total 49,863.29 48,803.37 249,875.73 217,45991
Outpatient - Adult Total 22,429.96 16,243.93 118,094.86 108,726.33
Assessment Total 25,000.95 13,961.56 98,058.31 57,129.55
Int Comm Services Total 42,298 94 34,288.14 200,291.77 164,431.80
Halfway House Total 8,672.40 0.00 26,595.36 21,574.84
Post Commitment Total 0.00 0.00 292.22 0.00
[OP-Adult Total 14,751.07 5,505.93 79,339.77 35,935.65
Therap. Comm. - Adult Total 0.00 5,821 80 0.00 13,584.20
Dual Res Total 5,706.72 615.60 6,974 88 31,591.40
Social Detox Total 3,007.08 1,459.74 18,042.48 10,218.18
Medically Mngd Withdrawl Total 6,559.08 4,776.03 42,087.43 38,738.91
Prevention Total 4,166.67 4,166.67 20,833.35 20,833.35
Recov Wellness SUD Total 10,714.56 0.00 10,714.56 0.00
Crisis Assmnt Total 0.00 0.00 3,927.17 42,070.75
Mini-Grant Total 0.00 500.00 2,177.47 3,130.12
Transition Payments Total 1,492.00 2,875.00 12,567.59 5,897.00
SOAR Total 4,356.50 13,069.50 21,782.50 13,069.50
Recovery Support Total 13,603.95 22,070.14 74,995.28 79,226 39
Comm Support Total 437.13 593.04 1,223.22 1,61132
SUD-CS Flex Funds Total 3,149.72 0.00 12,987.61 0.00
ACT Team Total 7,872.00 12,658.52 40,959.00 86,878 05
Crisis Resp Tm Total 31,648.75 24,465.88 165,576.06 133,604.16
SA - UR Pmnts Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 (215.89)
Prev Coal Total 3,583.59 27,809.38 38,295.03 41,305.80
Prev Training Total 0.00 000 250.00 40.00
RSHYV Housing Payments Total 4,987.13 8,941 99 26,138.73 49,621.80
RSHYV Housing Payments SD-TC Total 10,016.34 13,128.38 49,205 86 53,624 51
Special Pop Total 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 0,00
Contingency Mgt Prvdr SUD-ARPA Total 0.00 0.00 5.160.00 0.00
Substance Abuse Payments Total 298,923.92 318,347.78 1,474,063.70 1,436,168.20
Mental Health Payments
Crisis Stablization Total 1,51045 77,095.13 325,045.42 289,608 11

2/5/2024 at 9:32 AM

For Management Purposes Only

Page: 1



Region V Systems
Income Statement

For the Six Months Ending December 31, 2023 -9-
Current Month Current Month Year to Date Year to Date
This Year Last Year This Year Last Year
Assessment MH-Youth Total 0.00 733.22 0.00 2,126 35
OP-Adult Total 55,555.34 55,64223 266,878.66 312,764.48
Assessment MH-Adult Total 8,987.17 6,599.02 42,899.79 47,576.11
OP-Child Total 28,023.99 9,208 77 209,567.89 181,123.41
Day Rehab Total 2,378 32 2,017.95 10,665.52 12,632.70
MH-CS Flex funds Total 13258 628.50 509.02 6,107.02
MH-Respite Total 0.00 (356.68) 0.00 8,424 87
Therap Consult Total 1,445.62 472.87 6,505.27 1,17091
CS Total 16,192.06 16,552.91 70,332.76 88,702.08
Emerg CS Total 51,757.07 44.654.28 272,369.45 246,071.86
ER Flex Funds Total 1,632.83 3,732.78 12,349.30 17,395.67
Psych RR Total 1,640.40 (9,237.08) 16,732.08 1,274 .08
Med Support Total 11,333.96 8,895.42 41,789.07 45,526.14
Med Mgt Total 16,480.60 16,422.90 87,662 84 77,051.98
Peer Support Total 4,674 14 7,628.72 18,390.45 37,435.77
Recovery Support Total 30,916.70 35,131.11 132,542.08 129,695.42
Consumer Coalition Total 2,336.51 914,70 5,353.42 3,51633
Initiatives Total 575.00 0.00 15,046.85 2,17433
Homeless Total 0.00 5,416.00 27,080.00 48,736.00
Trauma Informed Care Total 461.57 0.00 4,708.40 17,240.68
Post Commitment Total 0.00 0.00 24,838.70 5,390.49
Assessment-YIC Total 36,518.70 20,770.32 155,157.38 111,713.69
Crisis Stablization Total 0.00 208,732.65 447,400 97 577,521.34
Secure Res Total 15,729.74 5,387.88 30,549.62 32,876.13
24Hr Crisis Line Total 32,652.15 36,360.02 84,015.63 90,792.48
Supportive Employment Total 6,499 80 5,234.04 21,937.30 24,317.65
Hospital Diversion Total 49,044.18 42,244.02 238,363.55 183,922.38
Recov Wellness MH Total 32,143.67 0.00 32,143.67 0.00
Housing Payments Total 31,858.12 16,176.10 145,722 34 123,922.47
Cont. Mgmt Region-ARPA MH Total 0.00 19,152.71 12,267.50 2641021
Mental Henlth Payments Total 440 480.67 636,210.49 2,758,824.93 2,753,221.14
Other Payments
Grant Payment Total 996.11 1,822.73 52,305.82 19,496.73
OTO Funds Total 0.00 Q.00 0.00 4,000.00
Misc Service Payments Total 11,789.26 0.00 2,837,282.74 2,202 00
MI-Provider Reimbursements Total 5,236 30 (468.75) 21,201.51 26,938.03
DBT-Provider Reimbursement Total 2,000.00 36,915.99 43,00021 79,645 46
CQI Coord Training Total 400.00 0.00 400.00 0.00
HUD Housing Total 103,070.34 75,692.65 517,922.39 422,024 44
County EPC Reimbursements Total 15,392.00 0.00 56,784,00 69,264.00
CLAS Payments Total 0.00 0.00 1,155.00 446.50
Other Payments Total 138,884.01 113,962:62 3,530,051.67 624 017.16
Administrative/Program Expenses
Admin Fee Total 1,633 64 18,432.37 45,60095 52,761.72
Advertising Total 2527 3896 78601 9,441.58
Advisory Brd Mtgs Total 0.00 99.50 85326 1,282.68
Auditing Total 61411 20,760.00 7,000.00 20,760,00
Background Checks Total 0.00 5.00 704.45 627.95
Collab. Partner Serv Total (423.27) (483.58) 622 (807.97)
Compliance/Mandates Total 995.00 0.00 995.00 0.00
Contract Services Total 11,407.71 20,098.70 159,203.91 89,002 23
Employee Benefit Fees Total 2,183.12 1,214.62 24,026.45 23,342.69
Equipment Total 1,503.36 0.00 6,051.29 2,032.33
Evaluations Total 5,992 40 11,031.18 39,552.40 64,752.63
Event Expenses Total 529.09 18,557.56 69,073.76 103,749.75
FICA Taxes Total 18,649.34 16,668.60 139,115.92 113,716.00
General Insurance Total (1,762.00) 0.00 48,716.00 45,011.38
Gov Brd Mtgs Total 622 0.00 918.57 77083
Health Insurance Total 64,716.28 5,239.33 355,224.39 307,484.92
Legal Total 600.00 0.00 1,007.50 18,402.50
Meeting Expenses Total 964.59 4994 3,307.35 626.09
Miscellaneous Total 2,900.00 1,854.73 28,965.75 20,437.98
Pension Total 12,190.45 12,100.50 90,234.09 74,987.23
Photocopying/Printing Total 503.86 57.48 7,790.72 6,744.85
POS - Flex Funds Total 7,016.63 5,810.77 34,159.93 39,565.34
Postage Total 299.00 (3.00) 3,236.56 1,934 56
Rent Total 31,48530 32,113.69 197,307.47 192,981.53
Repairs & Maintenance Total 1,420.00 3,091.00 6,130.52 10,237.22
Salaries Total 252,030.42 187,667.86 1,607,921.09 1,470,577.98
Software Purchases/Maintenance Total 3,561.86 11,555.47 117,413.49 138,743.01
Staff Development Total 2,883.50 886.33 18,074.11 15,577.07
Subscr, Dues, Books Total 0.00 2,468.31 17,337.00 27,471.09
Supplies Total 1,817.27 491942 39,273.04 29,323.82
Telephone Total 491963 3,338.09 30,027.92 28,988.92
Travel Total 3,612.55 93529 15,327.67 6,551.22
Vehicle Maur Total 1,062.17 1,237.06 3,848.94 7,838.58
Administrative/Program Expenses Total 433.337.50 379,745.18 3,119,191.73 292492371
Total Expenses 1,311,626.10 1,448,466.07 10,882,132.03 7.738,330.21
Net Income s 307.82543 (S 159,544,09) (8 1,817,324.23) § 589.742.34

2/5/2024 at 9:32 AM For Management Purposes Only Page: 2



SUMMARY OF ALL ADMINISTRATIVE PROGRAMS \ FYl

December 2023 (50.00%)

_10_

MONTH YEAR BUDGET % %
Budget
Line to
Overall
BUDGET ITEM TO DATE TO DATE (12 MO) EXPENDED Budget
Administrative Revenue
Interest $12.31 $76.48 $5,000 1.53% 2.23%
Sub Lease $4,583.87 $27,503.22 $55,007 50.00% 24 48%
Administrative Services $5,740.61 $33,893.81 $164,700 20.58% 73.30%
Total Admin. Revenue $10,336.79 $61,473.51 $224,707 27.36%| 100.00%
Administrative Expenditures
Salaries $234,005.16 $1,535,279.47 $3,159,596 49.25% 56.45%
Benefits $88,570.51 $550,024.08 $1,074,153 19.19%
Payroll Taxes $131,130.55
Employee Insurance $334,437.53
Pension $84,456.00
Advertising $0.00 $747.10 $1,500 49.81% 0.03%
BHAC Mtg Exp/Travel $0.00 $853.26 $1,500 56.88% 0.03%
Auditing $614.11 $7,000.00 $21,750 32.18% 0.39%
Background Checks $0.00 $704.45 $1,500 46.96% 0.03%
Collaberative Partner Services ($423.27) $6.22 $0 0.00% 0.00%
Compliance / Mandates $995.00 $995.00 $9,550 10.42% 0.17%
Consulting $0.00 $0.00 $1,800 0.00% 0.03%
Contract Labor $12,403.82 $142,965.09 $203,650 70.20% 3.64%
Employee Benefit Fees $2,183.12 $24,026.45 $55,800 43.06% 1.00%
Equipment $1,503.36 $4,103.66 $26,900 15.26% 0.48%
Client Evaluation $5,992.40 $39,552.40 $101,451 38.99% 1.81%
Event Expenses $739.08 $2,628.86 $0 0.00% 0.00%
Insurance - General ($1,762.00) $46,168.96 $55,000 83.94% 0.98%
RGB Mtg Exp/Travel $6.22 $918.57 $3,300 27.84% 0.06%
Legal Fees $600.00 $1,007.50 $15,000 6.72% 0.27%
Meeting Expenses $660.94 $2,422.73 $6,420 37.74% 0.11%
Miscellaneous $0.00 $240.00 $1,500 16.00% 0.03%
Photocopying / Printing $445.21 $7,469.32 $26,000 28.73% 0.46%
Postage $261.77 $3,159.19 $13,000 24.30% 0.23%
Rent/Utilities $31,485.30 $197,307.47 $404,900 48.73% 7.23%
Repairs & Maintenance $1,420.00 $6,130.52 $17,000 36.06% 0.30%
Software Purch/Maint $3,561.86 $116,963.49 $126,124 92.74% 2.25%
Staff Development $2,883.50 $18,074.11 $50,700 35.65% 0.91%
Subscr., Dues & Books $0.00 $9,007.00 $17,045 52.84% 0.30%
Supplies $1,093.59 $9,030.77 $23,000 39.26% 0.41%
Telephone $4,919.63 $30,027.92 $58,640 51.21% 1.05%
Training Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0 0.00% 0.00%
Travel $3,232.06 $12,731.03 $23,500 54.17% 0.42%
Vehicle Maintenance $1,062.17 $3,848.94 $7,000 54 98% 0.13%
Purchase of Services $7,016.63 $34,159.93 $81,800 41.76% 1.46%
Administrative Fees $0.00 $0.00 $8,249 0.00%
Total Admin. Expenditures $403,470.17 $2,807,553.49 $5,597,328 50.16%| 100.00%

Note: This Sum

mary excludes the HUD Permanent Housing Grants (Rural, Lincoln and Rural Transition Age),
the SPF/PES Grant, and Suicide Prevention Grant



_11_

“SJUSWIPUSE JOBAIW0I 35y} da0xddE 0) preog 2} WO WONOJN :PIPIIN U0V

“Jumoure 1oenuUod parcidde
Asnoiaaxd mog 9%,¢T JO 3582199

-gore [eorydei30a38 SwalsAs d odio SwoIsAg joenuo) $70Z “0€ 2ung - €202 °1 Ang SEOIUOI IS
A UOISSY Ul SHUPE IO SIOIAISS SSNQE DUEISANS ure [, 0UBIIAUI0) Sye10tio) A uoi3ay Had-SHHA SEOIO 1S
0) 86T°SYHSS
“Junoure 19enuod pasoidde
A[snoraaid wioxy 9477 JO 958aI0U]
rwae [eorydedood SWASKS| oy souenduro sresodion mso_w% Jouuod ¥20z “0€ dung - €207 “T AIng 1930 SIS W{ESH [EHUOI
A UOISSy Ul S)ApE 10J SI0LAISS ISNQE IUEISGNS A U0y HYa-SHHA 15150 SISLI) TS [ENON
01 808°8€L1$
‘Junoure 30enu0d paroidde
Asnoraaid wiog 906 JO 9583199
“gare [eorydeiSoad swasig d i SwalsAg jldililg) P T A -ou] “eySeIqaN
A UOISSY UI S}Npe I0] SITIAISS asNqe 0Uesqug Urea, OUBEWIOD) SFei0¢100 A uorsoy HAd-SHHA "ou] ‘BYSeIqAN ¥T0T "0€ 2unf - €20 T AN 19]BSIN) JO SALOSNPU] [[IMPOOD
1518210 JO SILNSNpY] [[MPO0D)
01 00¥°L1$
‘Junoure j9enuod pasoidde
Asnorasid won 94,.6°¢9 JO aseaIou]
-gare [eorqde80od swoysAg OVHd pue SWIAISAS 10BHU0D) +Z0Z ‘0% dun - €202 “T Ao juouUnedAI],
A UOIS9Y UL S[Ope JOJ SIOIAISS 9SNqE S0UBISqNS| Wes], souerdwo) ajerodio) | A uoisay HEa-SHHd usunEa1], 29 2 Surjosumo)) U] $ALIV0SSY
Surpesuno)) Uy sajeI0ssy
01 00'678°LIES
i P

*5}19R13U0d 353y} da0adde o3 paeog Y Woly WONOTN :PIPIIN TOHIY

*SHOJJo
uonuoAaxd ut pue esusuadxs osn prordo pue ewinex

“Junoure pasoidde

uonoNpoIg 03PIA UOI] 0} 00S°3$

ARy OYM S[ENPIAIPUT I SunjIom sfeuolssajord pue spung
: swoshg A[snoiasxd wioIj o ¢ JO SSBIIU] . .
SIoqUISW AJUnUILIOn yroq o} djqeordde oq [1m seudg| wres, souerduio) ajerodio) A uorEayg VIV - 10e0uo) $20T “v1 Yo - T20T ‘1 Joquuvides AOIDPIY
*2PIAMAIE]S S[QISSIDIE PUE SHSGIM HEeIH 0} JTedH ’ Had-SHHA ¢ d
WeL, oy uo pajsod aq oy orurspids proido pue eumen ACIDPE 0} S90°LOTS 4 €11
uo $aKI9s SuIUen U0IEONP3/0dPIA € Jo Jusuwdopasg
‘Junoure paroxdde
'SISLIO 3SOPIAAO| - renidwon ayerodio SWRISAS mv._:"_.,m wo Ajsno1aaxd woIy 9,0L JO 95BIIOU] ¢ 1 UOTEW - ‘o1 IAWBAG (san99] 90f)
proido sy} uo sa19s 03piA red oY € JO UoNeaI) oL 1dweD 2 8 A uoidoy <AWMM_.MEMQ 0 Y20z 1 HoreIN - £20C ST59 N UOIIANPOIJ OIPIA UOI

SIUAUIAASY [EN)ILIIUC)) SWIISAS A UOISFY




_12_

-12813003 siyp droxdde o) paeog 37} WOIJ UONOA :PIPIRIN HOIRY

‘Sunyoen
juess pue 195pnq aaoxdun pue “MOff UoKeULIONL
aaoxdulr “sjs09 [0UOd ‘S3s59001d SUIUIEdNS
) 53500 [0 wuEss urea, soueyduio)) sperodio)
toyezIueSIo oY) SSOIOR SAIUSIYIO osuadxa :

n uelr) UoNezZIjl
SN | e | SMSPNEIOVIO 0 TT'LSS $70 Areiqaq - v0T Arenigad SUNSION HTOVHO

pue snuaaax med o} (YH) Suruue[d 99mosay
asudiojug Jo uonepuswojduw pue 9sEYdINg

o...wa.;mom

*510'13U0 3531} dA01ddE 0) paEOg Y} WO UOLOTA :PIPIIN WY

-fymurwio oy oy Sururen (VAHIN)|OVHE PUE ‘SI3PIAOL] OMIIN SumoysAS joRQUO)) I210]] OO . iy
pIV 1511 EOH] [EHISA UINOA 10/pue Jupe apia0ig | ‘wea, sowsnduiop afesodiop | Auodey | HEQ-SHHA o1 Supuren moy-g 1od 00 YT0T “0F AUn{ - 707 °T AT SRS
Jununs Kep-g corsk saIpms
s Sutmp yoddns £30jouyos) uoyewIoyut 9ptaoid o} wrea], soweyduwio) syesodiod " oSk A U0 01 0s3'€8 A0 | Y0T ‘07 WA - $T0T 6T R | P BUISIANJO 00§
(NRIO) omIaN asuodsay prordQ ayi qm 10Buo) Avorssd OXMIN JO JIE42q B0 HmOSSI
JO ANSIOAIG( JO s1ojem)) Y[,
. . wiseIqaN
upoour] Jo Ao o unpIM [JVHSE Pue SI0pIAOId HOMIN | .
P Io)Se0UR ] SwosAS A Uoi3sy 01 0ST°07$ 4707 ‘€ 19quiandos - $70T T Aenigag | wseIqaN ‘saseoue] Jo Aumod

Suuren v1Ad PRoA Pue V1A 10f SuIpuny opiaolg| Wres, souerdwo) srerodio) soffnog

Surarex]

SJUAUINAISY [EN)OLIIUO)) SWISAS A uoI3ay



_13_

NEBRASKA

Good Life. Great Mission.

DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Firy Pillan, GCovernor

November 7, 2023

Patrick Kreifels, Regional Administrator
Region V Behavioral Health Authority
1645 N Street

Lincoln, NE 68508

Mr. Patrick Kreifels,

The Division of Behavioral Health (DBH) recently completed the FY20-FY23 Region V Prevention
Programmatic Monitoring process. The DBH appreciates the time and assistance of Region V staff in
submitting required compliance deliverables by September 30, 2023.

The detailed review of Programmatic Monitoring deliverables allowed DBH staff to determine adherence
to the Federal Grant Regulations, the State to Region Contract, the Prevention Systems Manual, and other
guidance documents as applicable.

Following the initial review, please note the following:
Section 1. Agency File Information (SOR/PF S/SAPTBG)

Description: The Agency File Information includes documentation necessary for prevention work with
DBH.

Findings: No findings for Region V.
Recommendations:

SOR Deliverable #4: The 2022 Prevention Systems Manual must be signed, and any new versions of the
Prevention Systems Manual must be signed and adhered to by Region 5 Prevention staff. It is
recommended that the regions submit signed copies of the manual to acknowledge adherence.

Section 2. Responsiveness (SOR/PFS/SAPTBG)

Description: Culturally and linguistically appropriate services (CLAS) help health professionals provide
high quality services and communicate effectively with diverse communities. Communication and
language are integral to one’s culture and therefore are critical aspects of the provision of quality, patient-
centered services.

Helping People Live Befter Lives




_15_

PFS Deliverable #16: Recipients of PFS/SAPTBG must implement EBPs to fidelity, using policies,
procedures, and data tracking methods to ensure their effectiveness (Prevention System Manual P.10).
Supporting documentation includes a summary of efforts of how a particular EBP was identified and
selected for the region, such as assessments or coalition meeting minutes. This also includes
documentation of effectiveness such as assessments and outcome data. Documentation was not provided
to the evaluator for FY20-FY23 at the time of review.

Recommendations: No recommendations for Region V.
Section 5: Prevention (SOR)

Description: SOR grant funds primarily support evidence-based prevention activities by implementing
prevention and education services including training of peers and first responders on recognition of
opioid overdose and appropriate use of the opioid overdose antidote naloxone, develop evidence-based
community prevention efforts, including evidence-based strategic messaging on the consequences of
opioid misuse, and purchase and distribute naloxone and train on its use. The SOR grant is intended to
fund services or practices that have a demonstrated evidence base and that are appropriate for the
population(s) of focus.

Findings:

SOR Deliverable #17a,17b,17¢: Recipients of the SOR grant must implement policies and procedures to
ensure EBPs are identified and implemented to fidelity, including school-based EBPs (Attachment 5).
Supporting documents include documentation of EBP effectiveness and assessments or meeting minutes
determining selection of an EBP. No school-based EBP was selected and implemented for FY23.

Recommendation: No recommendations for Region V.
Acknowledgment:

SOR Deliverable #20,21: Naloxone distribution from FY20-22 was found to not be in compliance with
Nebraska Statute 28-470. Starting FY23, The Division of Behavioral Health coordinates naloxone
distribution.

Section 6: Treatment (SOR)

Description: Medications for Opioid Use Disorder (MOUD) is an effective treatment for individuals with
opioid use disorder. It involves use of medication along with counseling and behavioral therapies. The
use of SOR funds requires that only evidence-based treatments, practices and interventions for OUD be
used by recipients and subgrantees.

Findings:

SOR Deliverable #24: Regions receiving the SOR grant and carrying out treatment activities are required
to implement policies and procedures that ensure client- level data is tracked and reported to SAMHSA as
required. This is a contractual requirement (Attachment 3-Special Terms) that ensures compliance with
federal funding regulations. Supporting documents must include a log of persons served. A log of persons
served was not provided to the evaluator for FY20-FY23 at the time of review.

Helping People Live Better Lives



_14_

Findings: No findings for Region V.
Recommendations: No recommendations for Region V.
Section 3. Capacity (SOR/PFS/SAPTBG)

Description: Capacity building is a long-term, continuing process that involves mobilizing human,
organizational, and financial resources to promote and sustain intended outcomes.

Findings: No recommendations for Region V.
Recommendations: No recommendations for Region V.
Section 4: Assessing Need (SOR/PFS)

Description: Assessing need should include but not limited to identifying your population(s) of focus and
the geographic catchment area where services will be delivered, describing how funding streams will be
coordinated to address the need, discussing whether funding will also be used to address stimulant
misuse, describing the extent of the problem in the catchment area, including service gaps, and document
the extent of the need (i.e., current prevalence rates or incidence data) for the population(s) of focus
including identifying sources of data.

Findings: No findings for Region V.

Recommendations: No recommendations for Region V.

Section 5/4: Primary Prevention Initiatives (SAPTBG/PFS)

Description: All funded prevention activities must fall also within the following 6 Primary Prevention
Strategies: information dissemination, education, alternative activities, problem identification and
referral, community-based process, and environmental. The SAMHSA Center for Substance Abuse
Prevention requires that all prevention strategies be identified as fitting into the framework of one of
these six, overarching strategies. One way to think of these 6 strategies is that they represent the array of
services that are provided to specific target populations.

Findings: No findings for Region V.

Recommendations: No recommendations for Region V.

Section 6/5: EBPs by Type of Intervention (SAPTBG/PFS)

Description: All funded prevention activities, including EBPs, must fall within the Institute of Medicine
Prevention Classification (IOM) categories: Universal Prevention, Selective Prevention, Indicated

Prevention. The state is mandated to report to the federal government on who is being served, and what
approaches are being utilized.

Findings:

Helping People Live Better Lives



_16_

SOR Deliverable #25: Recipients of the SOR grant, funded for treatment, must implement policies and
procedures ensuring other funding sources are utilized first, when available, for that individual. This is a
contractual requirement (Section 3.1.3.3) that ensures compliance with federal funding
regulations.Supporting documents should include the region’s policy and procedures demonstrating they
are the payer of last resort. Files such as a region policy and procedure ensuring payer of last resort for
SOR treatment activities were not provided to the evaluator for FY20-FY23 at the time of review.

SOR Deliverable #26: Recipients of the SOR grant, funded for treatment, must implement service
delivery models enabling a full spectrum of treatment and recovery support services facilitating positive
treatment outcomes and long-term recovery from opioid and stimulant use disorders. This is a federal
requirement (NOFO p. 9) for those providing treatment. Supporting documents include the service
model. No documentation was provided to the evaluator for FY20-FY23 at the time of review.
Recommendations: No recommendations for Region V.

Section 7: Recovery (SOR)

Description: Implement community recovery support services such as peer supports, recovery coaches,
and recovery housing. Recipients must ensure that recovery housing supported under this grant is in an
appropriate and legitimate facility. Recipients must describe the mechanism(s) in place in their
jurisdictions to assure that a recovery housing facility to receive these funds provides evidence-based
treatment in a safe and appropriately staffed setting.

Findings: No findings for Region V.

Recommendations: No recommendations for Region V.

Section 8: Data Collection (SOR/PFS/SAPTBG)

Description: Funded prevention initiatives include strategies that address the targeted audience and
desired outcome and ensure expenditures for prevention initiatives reflect objective analysis of data,
evidence-based or promising practices, and alignment with the community’s strategic prevention plan.
Findings: No findings for Region V.

Recommendations: No recommendations for Region V.

Commendations: DBH commends Region V staff for their SAPTBG reporting.

Again the DBH appreciates Region V staff for their assistance in completing this process. If you have
questions, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,
Debnincs %Mm

Delainie Johnson

Helping Peaple Live Better Lives



NEBRASKA

Good Life. Great Mission.

DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES i Pilien, Governoy

01/10/2024
FY22 Services Purchased Expense Reimbursement Verification

For Region V Behavioral Health Authority

Conducted by: Valerie Standeven, Budget Officer Ili
Karen Harker, Deputy Director of Finance
Karla McAdams, Accountant il

Initiated on March 22, 2022 and concluded on December 20th, 2023, the Division of Behavioral Health
(DBH) conducted the FY22 Services Purchased audit. DBH staff reviewed select expenses tied to services
paid as expense reimbursement to Region V Behavioral Health between July 1, 2021 and June 30, 2022.
A full listing of the services reviewed is included in the Data Reviewed section. In addition to state and
block grant funds, samples from funds expended in PFS, SOR, and RSP grants were reviewed. The Region
received no direct payments for services from the SEG grant.

A monitoring audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence to ensure compliance with Federal
and State grant fiscal requirements. The reviews generally include testing of amounts charged to DHHS
for payroll, expenditures, and other purchases. Reviews may also include other grant specific
requirements, such as matching, program income and limitations on specific expenditure types. An
assessment of the grantee's financial management system is performed as part of the review process.

A pay back of $5,244.09 is required from the Region (See Note C). Please submit payback by check to
DHHS Attn: Karen Harker PO Box 95026 Lincoln NE 68509 by February 10, 2024

Recommendations for Consideration

1. Review Region travel and business expense policy for best practice of timeliness of
expense reiumbursement. (Note A)

2 Notation: Ensure that Housing Log in CDS is completed and accurate for every
consumer receiving housing assistance. This includes ensuring the deficit(s) in diagnosis
codes are reviewed and checked accurately. Per FY24 housing manual, Housing Log is
to be completed. Going forward, failure to complete could resultin a payback. (Note B)

3. Review billing practices for Coordination expense to avoid overbilling. Note: Region has
revised billing practice for FY24. (Note C)'

1 Only reflects funding through the Department of Behavioral Health and no other revenue match.

Helping People Live Better Lives

._17_




_18_

Observations
Note A

Region should review the travel and business expense policy to ensure best practice of timeliness of expense
reiumbursement is followed. This ensures that all expenses will be paid within the correct dates the grant. Both
examples below will not require a payback as they are still within the federal fiscal year.

Mileage was reported as a payment in January 2022 for KN but the mileage accrued from September 22, 2021
through 12/17/2021.

Mileage reported in June 2022 for JF was for 6 months starting in January 2022 and ending in June 2022

Region V Systems 94277

Check Number: 94277

Check Date: Jun 15,2022
Jade Fowler- Check Amount  $576.87
Invoice : Date Description Amount Paid
Mileage 2/1-2/25 22 6/15/22 Mileage 2/1-2/25 22 252.54
Mileage 1/6-1/1322  6/15/22 Mileage 1/6-1/13 22 9654
Mileage 3/1-3/29 22 6/15/22 Mileage 3/1-3/29 22 165.73
71.96

Mileage 4/12-4/118 22 6/15/22 Mileage 4/12-4/18 22




_19_

Note B

Within CDS, the housing offer date, housing offer result and (Expected) move in date are expected to be
filled out. With the new FY24 Housing manual, this is a required field and will need to be completed.

it was identified the region did not have documentation correctly filled out for the Diagnosis section in
CDS for deficits which need to be completed. There were 2 instances from our random selection where
this was not completed (ID#185952146 and ID#000013606). This is a requirement for the FY24 housing
program.

The region must review their practices in documenting for housing correctly in CDS as future events, will
require payback. Please review FY24 Housing Manual.

Note C

Region was splitting the coordination expenses overall the total of their budget and did not shift their
budget since they were still within the year total {exception consumer coordination). For example,
when reviewing travel it was found that the billing for travel was overbilled in EBS by $584.64. Overall,
the region billed $5,244.09 over their GL. In speaking with Region Fiscal, beginning in FY24, actual
expenses will be billed based on the month’s GL. Therefore pay back requested in the amount of
$5,244.09.2

Approved Budget GL EBS I
1
“onsumer Coord
Personnel 125,689.00‘ 55,113.01 55,269.00
General 84,645.00 76,154.96 86,998.38
Travel 585.00 0.36 585.00
Indirect 8,571.00 8,145.00 8,571.12
Capital Outlays 2,353.00 0.00 0.00
subtotal 221,843.00 139,413.33 151,423.50
Revenue 0 0 6,766.08
Total 221,843.00 139,413.33 " 144,657.42 5,244.09

The Division wishes to thank the Region staff for their assistance in this review.

2 Only reflects funding through the Department of Behavioral Health and no other Revenue match.

Helping People Live Betler Lives



_20_

Details on services
The expenses reviewed were categorized as the following in EBS. All were confirmed in financial records.

€Q] Coordination Training

Expenses: May-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 7,800.00 12,500.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 7,800.00 12,500.00

Behavioral Health Integration

Expenses: Sep-21 Jun-22
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 412.00 361.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 412.00 361.00

Dialectal Behavioral Therapy Training-MH

Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Travel 769.97 1,768.53
Contractors 9,125.00 11,450.00
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Training 12,622.61 0.00
Supplies 435.96 0.00
Provider Reimbursements 10,438.88 8,3410.55
Totals 33,392.42 96,629.08

Dialectal Behavioral Therapy Training-SUD

Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Travel 769.97 1,768.54
Contractors 9,125.00 11,450.00
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Training 12,622.61 0.00
Supplies 435.00 0.00
Provider Reimbursements 10,438.88 8,3410.55
Totals 33,391.46 96,629.09

Helping People Live Better Lives



_21_

Emergency Flex Funds - MH

Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Psychotropic Medications 0.00 0.00
Clothing 0.00 0.00
Temporary Shelter 0.00 0.00
Consultation/Assessment 0.00 0.00
Transportation 0.00 0.00
Other Flex Fund Expense 674.00 240.00
Totals 674.00 240.00

Interpreter Services-MH

Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operatlons 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
QOther Expenses 783.76 141.02
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 783.76 141.02

Motivational Interviewing Training-MH

Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Travel 105.00 2,107.07
Contractors 5,053.13 25,162.50
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Training 3,854.40 24.30
Supplies 1,729.03 1,404.00
Provider Reimbursements 0.00 31468.32
Totals 10,741.56 60,166.19

Motivational Interviewing Training-SUD

Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Travel 35.00 702.35
Contractors 1,684.38 8,387.50
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Training 1,284.80 8.10
Supplies 576.34 468.00
Provider Reimbursements 0.00 10,483.44
Totals 3,580.52 20,055.39

Plans For One

Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00

Helping Peaple Live Betier Lives



Contractors 0.00 0.00
indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 1,170.00 2,440.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 1,170.00 2,440.00
Professional Partner-Youth-CAD
Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 11,718.94 9,053.87
General Operations 5,810.83 6,596.68
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 17,529.77 15,974.19
Prevention Alt Act Non EBP {Only one payment for the entire year)
Expenses: jun-22
Personnel Services 0.00
General Operations 0.00
Travel 0.00
Contractors 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00
Other Expenises 1,105.06
Medications 0.00
Totals 1,105.06
Prevention Community Base Non EBP
Expenses: Mar-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 3,238.62 3,492.66
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 3,238.62 3,492.66
Prevention Education EBP
Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 5,500.00 50,155.42
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 5,500.00 50,155.42

Helping Peaple Live Better Lives

_22_



Prevention Education NON EBP

Expenses: Sep-21 Jun-22
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 500.00 1,700.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 500.00 1,700.00
Prevention Environmental EBP
Expenses: Mar-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 750.00 79,613.61
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 750.00 79,613.61
Prevention Mini Grants
Expenses: Mar-22 Jun-22
Information Dissemination 0.00 0.00
Education 0.00 1,499.00
Alternative Activities 0.00 0.00
Problem Identification 0.00 0.00
Community Base 3,600.00 0.00
Environmental 0.00 0.00
Totals 3,600.00 1,499.00
Prevention Training
Expenses: Apr-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 5,900.00 7,840.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 5,900.00 7,840.00

Helping People Live Belter Lives

_23_



Regional CQl Coordination-MH

Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 12,044.08 12,044.08
General Operations 2,831.75 2,831.87
Travel 47.54 47.54
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 14,923.37 14,923.49
Regional CQl Coordination-SUD
Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 12,044.08 12,044.08
General Operations 2,831.75 2,831.69
Travel 47.54 47.54
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 14,923.37 14,923.31
Revenue Received 6,037.38 6,037.38
Net Totals 8,885.99 8,885.93
Region Administration Coordination-MH
Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 29,442.13 29,442.13
General Operations 4,425.25 4,425.19
Travel 185.13 185.13
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 34,052.51 34,052.45
Revenue Received 16,939.71 16,939.71
Net Totals 17,112.80 17,112.74
Region Administration Coordination-SUD
Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel! Services 29,442.13 29,442.13
General Operations 4,425.25 4,425.19
Travel 185.13 185.13
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00

Heiping People Live Better Lives

_24_



_25_

Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 34,052.51 34,052.45

Revenue Received 16,939.71 16,939.71
Net Totals 17,112.80 17,112.74

Regional Consumer Coordination-MH

Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 4,605.75 4,605.75
General Operations 7,249.83 7,250.25
Travel 48.75 48.75
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 714.26 714.26
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 12,618.59 12,619.01
Revenue Received 563.84 563.84
Net Totals 12,054.75 12,055.17

Region Disaster Coordination-MH

Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 1286.54 1286.54
General Operations 249.73 249.73
Travel 11.43 11.43
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 92.86 92.86
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 1640.56 1640.56
Revenue Received 790.56 790.56
Net Totals 850.00 850.00

Region Disaster Coordination-SUD

Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 1286.54 1286.54
General Operations 249.73 249.73
Travel 11.43 11.43
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 92.86 92.86
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 1640.56 1640.56
Revenue Received 790.56 790.56
Net Totals 850.00 850.00

Helping People Live Betler Lives.




Region Emergency Coordination-MH

Expenses: Jan-22 lun-22
Personnel Services 9,347.08 9,347.08
General Operations 1,532.17 1,5632.11
Travel 105.92 105.92
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 659.11 659.11
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 11,644.28 11,644.22
Revenue Received 1,962.69 1,962.69
Net Totals 9,681.59 9,681.53
Region Housing Coordination-MH
Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 15,623.17 15,623.17
General Operations 2,408.99 2,408.93
Travel 99.54 99.54
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 797.13 797.13
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 18,928.83 18,928.77
Revenue Received 4,463.78 4,463.78
Net Totals 14,465.05 14,464.99
Region Housing Coordination-TAY
Expenses: lan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 1,287.33 1,287.33
General Operations 315.92 315.92
Travel 12.42 12.42
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 96.94 96.94
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 1,712.61 1,712.61
Revenue Received 768.94 768.94
Net Totals 943.67 943.67

Helning People Live Beller Lives

_26_



_27_

Region Prevention Coordination-SUD

Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 20,552.08 20,552.08
General Operations 5,343.37 5,343.43
Travel 314.95 314.95
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 1,572.62 1,572.62
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 27,783.02 27,783.08
Revenue Received 3,843.37 3,843.37
NET TOTALS 23,939.65 23,939.71

Region Youth Coordination -MH

Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 4,717.63 4,717.63
General Operations 464.00 463.19
Travel 572.08 572.08
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 345.21 345.21
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 6,098.92 6,098.11
Revenue Received 2,287.93 2,287.93
NET TOTALS 3,810.99 3,810.18

Region Youth Coordination-SUD

Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 4,717.63 4,717.63
General Operations 464.00 463.19
Travel 572.08 572.08
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 345.21 345.21
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 6,098.92 6,098.11
Revenue Received 2,287.93 2,287.93
NET TOTALS 3,810.99 3,810.18

Service Initiatives — Consumer-MH

Expenses: Jan-2022 Jun-2022
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00

Helping Peaple Live Better Lives




Other Expenses 377.22 419.82
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 377.22 419.82
Service Initiatives — Consumer-SUD
Expenses: Jan 2022 June 2022
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 377.22 419.82
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 377.22 419.82
Service Initiatives — MH-Special Population (No other Services for the Year)
Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 435.00 0.00
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 435.00 0.00
Service Initiatives — Trauma-MH
Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personne! Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 4,152.07 857.75
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 4,152.07 857.75
Service Initiatives — Trauma-SUD
Expenses: Jan-22 May-22
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 1,450.00 857.75
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 1,450.00 857.75

‘Helping People Live Better Lives

_28_



Supported Housing
Expenses: lan-22 Jun-22
Supported Housing - MH 62,944.67 54,655.21
Supported Housing - SUD 7,048.93 14,432.36
Mar-22
Supported Housing — Trans Age 19-26 MH 8,171.43 8,799.82
May-22
Supported Housing - WC 4,870.00 9,716.77
SOR — Prevention
Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 1027.83 184.70
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 765.00 4,421.81
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 1,792.83 4,606.51
SOR — Treatment
Expenses: Jan-22 lun-22
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 0.00 0.00
Indirect Cost 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 0.00 0.00
Lab/Medical Test 625.00 500.00
Office visit 359.90 0.00
Medications 300.01 130.04
Totals 1,284.91 630.04
RSP Grant (Grant ended in December 2021)
Expenses: Oct-21 Dec-21
Personnel Services 43,670.19 50,850.40
General Operations 7,556.96 6,228.30
Travel 3,548.72 1,669.92
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 1,275.97 353.21
Other Expenses 1,175.43 2,368.81
Medications 0.00 0.00
Totals 57,227.27 61,470.64

‘Helping People Live Belter Lives

_29_



PFS-Underage Drinking SUD
Expenses: Jan-22 Jun-22
Personnel Services 0.00 0.00
General Operations 150.75 221.30
Travel 0.00 0.00
Contractors 0.00 0.00
Indirect Administration 0.00 0.00
Other Expenses 7,971.02 2,2495.81
EBP Specific Expenses 1,860.00 9,578.40
Totals 9,981.77 32,295.51

No payments for services by Region 5 for SAMSHA Emergency Grant (SEG)

Helping People Live Better Lives

_30_




NEBRASKA

Good Life. Great Mission.

DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES [ ———

October 23, 2023

Patrick Kreifels, Regional Administrator
Region V Behavioral Health Authority
1645 N Street

Lincoln, NE 68505

Mr. Kreifels,

The Division of Behavioral Health (DBH) recently completed the FY23 Region V Network Compliance
Monitoring process. The DBH appreciates the time and assistance of Region V staff in submitting
required compliance deliverables by September 30, 2023.

The detailed review of Network Compliance deliverables allowed DBH staff to determine adherence to
the FY23 Network Operations Manual, Regional Budget Planning Guidelines, the State to Region
Contract, and other guidance documents as applicable.

For the FY23 Network Compliance review, please note the following:

Recommendations:

1. Including methodology for when reoccurring meetings are held will help DBH understand why
certain meetings, like RQIT, had limited meeting documentation.

2. The Region submitted confirmation that Region staff completed 42 CFR Training for FY23.
Additionally, please provide similar documentation of this training for providers.

3. For Youth Coordination, please list the agencies along with the individuals on the partners list.

4. Add clarification stating which Youth Services trainings were for Region staff versus those
offered to others.

Commendations:
1. The timely submission of Network Compliance documents was appreciated. It allowed DBH to
begin the review process without delay.
2. The continued correspondence, including providing additional documentation beyond the initial
submission, demonstrates commitment to delivering a thorough and accurate review of efforts.
3. The information submitted provided a comprehensive view of the Region and allowed DBH to
verify required information in an efficient and timely manner.

Helping Peaple Live Better Lives




_32_

Thank you for the effort taken to submit all Network Compliance information. The efforts of Region V
staff made the process efficient and informative. If you have questions, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,
2 p A * i
/- / / f f. 0 A
— i 7 A £ g LT A
Jof= /7 -"( y F - 4 { . I.ﬂ"' i

Rebekah Willoughby, MPH

Community Services Administrator
Division of Behavioral Health

Department of Health and Human Services

Helping People Live Better Lives



Interlocal Agreement Revisions
Region V Systems and Apace Collaborative Timeline of Action Items e
Updated 2/1/24
December 2023
& 12/21/23: Matt Kasik, Patrick Kreifels, and Kim Michael met to formulate coordinated plan of action steps.

January 2024
% Apace and Region V Systems initiated consultation with respective legal counsels. Group meeting was held
with Apace, Region V Systems, and both legal counsels to discuss legal strategy. Legal recommendation was
to terminate current Interlocal Agreement and develop individual agreements for each entity.

R/

& Established weekly meeting schedule between Matt Kasik, Patrick Kreifels, and Kim Michael to touch base
on this process.

February 2024

&  Provide this timeline in both RGBS’ 2/12/24 meeting packets.

& 2/12/24 RGB Meetings: Matt Kasik, Patrick Kreifels, and Kim Michael will attend each other’s RGB Meetings.
Discuss reasons for recommendation to terminate current Interlocal Agreement and subsequently developing two
separate Interlocal Agreements.

» Ask for motion to move forward to terminate Interlocal Agreement by way of approving Resolution

presented. Note: Not asking for motion to approve revised Interlocal Agreements (that motion slated
for September 2024).

March 2024
& 3/11/24 (RGB Meetings):

S  Draft Interlocal Agreement included in Region V Systems’ and Apace’s meeting packetas a
“head’s up” for content (no formal action to adopt document at this meeting).

»  Matt Kasik/Patrick Kreifels/Kim Michael provide updates to respective Boards about the
Interlocal Agreement revision process to date.

March 2024 — August 2024

&  Patrick Kreifels and Matt Kasik attend all 16 County Board meetings to discuss and answer questions about
the revised Interlocal Agreements.

September 2024
& 9/9/24 RGB Meetings: FINAL Interlocal Agreements included in Region V Systems’ and Apace’s meeting
packet for MOTION to adopt.

» At each RGB meeting, advise that a joint letter from Patrick Kreifels and Matt Kasik will be
distributed by 9/16/24 to each County Board asking that each County Board adopt a
resolution to sign the revised Interlocal Agreements (e.g., each County Board will adopt two
resolutions — one for Region V Systems and one for Apace).

September — October 2024

& Kim Michael facilitates mailing each County Board its revised Interlocal Agreement for signature and return (for
Region V Systems and Apace).

» The County Boards will be instructed to mail back BOTH Interlocal Agreements to Kim Michael (Kim then
forwards Apace’s signed docs to Matt Kasik).

»  Confirmation will be provided to RGB that all counties signed and returned documents for
Region V Systems and Apace.

V:\Interlocal Agreements\2024 Agreement Revision Process\Timeline of Action Items_RGB.docx



RESOLUTIONS OF
THE GOVERNING BOARD OF
REGION V SYSTEMS

WHEREAS, Region V Systems (“Region V Systems™) and Region V Services d/b/a Apace
(“Apace”) were formed as separate legal entities pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated
Agreement for the Formation of the Region V Community Human Services Program (“Region
V”) dated July 6, 2009 (the “Existing Agreement”) between the following sixteen (16) counties in
Nebraska: Polk, Butler, Saunders, Seward, Lancaster, Otoe, Fillmore, Saline, Thayer, Jefferson,
Gage, Johnson, Nemaha, Pawnee, York, and Richardson (the “Counties”).

WHEREAS, Region V is governed, managed, and administered by a governing board,
consisting of one member from each of the Counties’ governing boards (the “Region V Governing
Board”).

WHEREAS, Region V Systems and Apace operate as distinct entities, and the members of
the Region V Governing Board also serve as members of the independent governing boards of
both Region V Systems and Apace (with respect to Region V Systems, the “Governing Board”).

WHEREAS, given the separate nature by which Region V Systems and Apace operate, the
Governing Board believes it to be in the best interest of Region V Systems for the Counties to
enter into separate interlocal agreements, ultimately forming a new interlocal agreement for
Region V Systems (the “New Agreement”).

RESOLVED, that the Governing Board hereby authorizes the officers of Region V
Systems to engage and work with legal counsel to prepare a New Agreement and present the New
Agreement, first, to the Governing Board and, second, the Counties, in each case for their
respective review, comment and final approval.

RESOLVED, that upon the full and final execution of the New Agreement, the Existing
Agreement will automatically terminate, except as otherwise stated in the New Agreement.

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned, as Chairperson of the Governing Board of Region V Systems, certifies
that the foregoing resolutions were adopted by the Governing Board at a meeting duly and
regularly held on 2024, at which meeting a quorum was present.

Chairperson

4868-6868-1377, v. 1

_34_



NERDASKA
Good Life. Great Mission.

DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Date: December 20, 2023
TO: Regional Administrators, Regional Network Providers

| N
FROM: Tony Green, Interim Director, Division of Behavioral Health 22{?’\5“‘4

RE: DBH Telehealth and Phone Services Effective January 1, 2024

Effective January 1, 2024, the following services will be available via telehealth and phone for DBH
services listed in the Continuum of Care Manual. Telehealth is defined as a medium that has an audio
and visual component. Phone services are defined as services that may be delivered by audio only. In
the chart below, an “X” indicates that the service is available for delivery via the indicated medium.

Mental Health Crisis Services
Service Telehealth Phone

Emergency Psychiatric Observation

Crisis Stabilization

24-Hour Crisis Line X X
Mental Health Respite

Emergency Community Support X X
Crisis Response X X

Hospital Diversion

Mental Health Treatment Services: Hospital
Service Telehealth Phone

Acute Inpatient

Sub-Acute Hospitalization

Mental Health Treatment Services: Outpatient
Service Telehealth Phone
Day Treatment

Medication Management
Mental Health Assessment/Addendum
Multi-Systemic Therapy

Intensive Community Services

Outpatient Individual Psychotherapy

[ [ [ [ X |X

Outpatient Group Psychotherapy

DBH/RA Communication #25

Helping People Live Better Lives




Outpatient Family Psychotherapy X X
Yes, but requires
one in-person
contact every 30
Peer Support days
Therapeutic Consultation X X
Mental Health Rehabilitation Services
Service Telehealth Phone
Community Support Mental Health X
Day Rehabilitation
Recovery Support X X
Supported Employment Milestone 5 X
Secure Residential
Day Support
Assertive Community Treatment
Psychiatric Residential Rehabilitation
Substance Use Disorder
Service Telehealth Phone
Substance Use Disorder Assessment /
Addendum X
Community Support - ASAM IvI1 X
Outpatient Individual Psychotherapy -
ASAM 1.0 X X
Outpatient Group Psychotherapy - ASAM
1.0 X
Outpatient Family Psychotherapy - ASAM
1.0 X X
Intensive Outpatient ASAM 2.1
Halfway House ASAM 3.1
Social Detoxification ASAM 3.2 WM
Intermediate Residential ASAM 3.3
Therapeutic Community ASAM 3.3
Short-Term Residential ASAM 3.5
Dual Disorder Residential ASAM 3.5
Opioid Treatment Program X X

Medically Monitored Withdrawal
Management ASAM 3.7

Helping People Live Better Lives

_36_



NEBRASKA

Good Life. Great Mission.

DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Jirn Pillen, Soverno?

Date: January 15, 2024
TO: Regional Administrators, Regional Network Directors, and Regional Fiscal Managers

FROM: Tony Green, Interim Director, Division of Behavioral Health ‘_2\&,4\

Core Service Requirements

Effective as of January 15, 2024, the Division of Behavioral Health will begin the process of bringing
core services online in each of its regions. Regions shall show evidence of attempting to bring services
online by way of RFI. If a provider shows interest, an RFP must be submitted.

If the RFP does not render a provider, the regions may contract out of the region to provide the service
or may provide the service themselves. If the service is being offered in your region by a provider
not enrolled with the RBHA, the RBHA must utilize a LOA process to address individual
consumer needs for this service. All providers must meet network enroliment standards.

FAQ:

Can existing providers add a new service without an RFP? No, an RFP must be issued for all new
services.

Can a region contract from an RFI if only one provider responds? A provider cannot be directly
contracted off an RFI, an RFP must be submitted.

The timeline for establishing these services is as follows:

Mental Health Core Services - Phase 1 (RFI/RFP by July 1. 2024)
24 Hour Crisis Line
Acute Inpatient Hospitalization (Aduit)
Mental Health Assessment and Addendum (Adult and Youth)
Community Support (Adult)
Crisis Response (Adult and Youth)
Day Support (Adult) or Day Rehabilitation (Adult)
Emergency Community Support (Adult)
Medication Management (Adult and Youth)
OP Psychotherapy: Individual, Group, Family (Adult and Youth)
Mental Health Peer Support (Adult)
High Fidelity Wraparound (Professional Partner Program) (Youth)
Supported Employment (Milestone 5/Extended Services) (Adult)

DBH/RA Communication #26

Helping People Live Better Lives



_38_

Substance Use Core Services - Phase 1 (RFI/RFP by July 1, 2024)
SUD Assessment and Addendum (Adult and Youth)
SUD Community Support (Adult)
SUD Intensive Outpatient (Adult)
MAT for Opioid and Alcohol (Adult)
SUD OP Psychotherapy (Individual, Group, Family) (Adult and Youth)
Social Detox (Adult) or Medically Managed Inpatient Withdrawal Management (Adult)

Mental Health - Phase 2 (RFI/RFP by January 1. 2025)
Crisis Stabilization (Adult)
ACT or Intensive Community Services (Adult)
Mental Health Respite (Adult)

Substance Use - Phase 2 (RFI/RFP by January 1, 2025)
Halfway House (Adult)
Short-term Residential (Adult)

Mental Health - Phase 3 (RFI/RFP by July 1. 2025)
Dual Disorder Residential (Adutt)
Psych Residential Rehabilitation (Adult)

Substance Use - Phase 3 (RFI/RFP by July 1, 2025)
SUD Peer Support (Adult)
Therapeutic Community SUD (Adult) or SUD Intermediate Residential (Adult)

Please direct questions to the DHHS Behavioral Health Division Network Unit at
DHHS.DBHNetworkOperations@nebraska.qov.

Thank you for your continued service.

Helping People Live Better Lives



_39_

AYVINININS NOILVYZIT1LN LOVYLNOD

TE268901S) | VEOCLOOE § |%SCL | (6CCO0VTS |%9'LL | LUEIEOSTS | O0'6CB'E6TS | O0'SYEEET $ 7 - -
|

{0TTELTS) § | OZTEL'98 § |%6'ECT | 09'SIE'EPS |%6'ECT | 09'SIEEVS 00'000°5€ $ | 00'000'0T § | S :920.0_ ILVa-1INAV-AdVEIHLOHOAS INIILYALNO - ANS
(ev'e8s'L9) § | TYLSV'TTT § [%'E0T | OV'E6Y'OVS |%E'STT | TL'EEL'9SS 00887 §|000000T $| S [dOI-ans | TWILNIAIST NON - 1INV - INIILVALNO IAISNILNI - ANS
(0T'8v0'y) § | 9T688L6 $ |%TTS | EIVVE'BY § |%TTS | E9VVE'ENS | 00TY8'E6 $ | 00TY8'E6 $ | S |OTHSTH | TVILN3AISTY NON - 11NaY - LNGWSS3SSY - ans
80bLT'8S | C6'ST8T  § %16 | 96TTES %16 | 96TT6S 00'000°0T$ | 00'000°0T $ | S .:oio-_.: 17NaV INJILYA1NO - HA
9v'/8T'8S | vSTI8T  $ [%T'6 | [T906S  |%T'6 | LT'906% 00'000°07$ | 00'000°0T § | S44  NWSSV-H VILNIAISTY NON - 1INAV - INIWSSISSY - HN
00°70T$. $|%00 | 0008 %00 | 00'0$ 00v0T$ | 00%0T  $ | SdiN |ozesz# SANNH X314 AONIOHINI - H

ﬂ_._m Jesp pu3z Jesp % 7 pied % ) paisanbay joeluo) adAL | #199yS JADIAN3S )
" Buiuieway ~3ung ) i enU0) ‘80 k) | . . - R

pawaiosd | pawafosd %005 waLn) . -

. B B B vZ- €2 Ad -
INFNLYIHL @ ONITISNNOD NI ST1VIOOSSY
m j _ _w
€2/1€/TT J0 SV
YT-€TAd




_40_

_ [ : - ==

S TOE'B6T IVOTEZETT § | %656E | CETIEG9S | %LS6E | €28ST'995  § | O0GIIDEVT § 00'6T9'0EY'T $ WLoL ) - - i
ogizeer S| vETSUSY S| %OEE | BIOVITZ  § | %OEE | LIONSL | 0060589 $|0060SBI  $| S¥ | oerSiH S3 NON - L1NAY - LN3ILYd1NO IAISN3L JANI - dNS
6568570 §| 6199 S| %ETL |OUGOEE S| WETT | ILGOEE §|ooeoz’er  §|ooe0zer  § | S44 | viwsi# i HLNOA - INJWSSSSY - ANS
00°v£9'6 00BIV09  § | %EEy | LOESEOE  § | %UEY | 00600 s loozeo'o. $|o00zeo'0L | s#d | eeysw | W IN3aISTH NON - 1INV - LNJWSSISSY - ANSs
bS6LS'L Gy7Z9 /01§ | %9y |ETTIBES | %9y | €CTIEES S 00TST'STT § | 00TST'STT § | SHN | VITy-STi dX3-11NAY-AdVHIHLOHADSd INJILVdLNO -aNS
0TTvSZE | 08BS6'E6  § | %ULE |OV6LEOY S | %TLE 7 oveLeov & |00005'9zT § | 00'00S'SLT S| S3d | Tev-stH T 3LV4-1INAY-AdYHIHLOHOAS IN3ILVd1NO - ans
90'195'7 YEEITLE | %08y | L6VESST S | %0'8Y L6881 $ [ooTec'ge  §|00TEL'BE  § | 4N |vOCY-STH dX3-NIYTTHO-ADVHIHLOHOAS INIILYLLNO - dNS.
VB'ESS'S 9T'9s6'E | %L 0T | 80°BLE'T S| %oz Tcmaﬂ s oo0vs's  $|000vsE | sdd | ozrsté | ILVH-NIHATIHO-ADVHIHLOHOAS IN3ILVdLNO-aNs
(e6'08) Z60€0's  § | %E0S | 9SISTS | %e0s | 9r'STSTS | 00000's  $[00000s  $| SHHN HINOKWA|  TVILNIAISTH NON - HLNOA - INIWIDOVYNYIN QIN - HN
006661 T sl woo | - §| woo | - ¢ 00EBEYT  $| 00BGEYT S | SN | LIESTH - 1INAV-SANNA X314 - HN.
(BEvEG'E)  § |SEevy'EC  §| %I09 | 69VZTL S | %109 | 69VCLTT s |oosts'sr  §|oosTsr  §| SdN | 99E-sT# | 35 INIWIDVNVA NOLLYOIQaN - HA
GT'8Y0'TE eeeTe & | %vsz | 2696661 S | %vse | T6966'ST  $ | 00TYOES  § | O0THO'ED §| sa | zeestH "3A1vY - HLNOA - INIWSSISSY - HAL
SETIEO  § | PO9ECLT  § | %E9E |CEBIIEL S %E9E | ZEBII'ET S |oosys'ze 5 |o08pSLE S| s34 | TEEGTH “ADN3ONIWE - LINAY - INIT SISIHO ¥NOH 2 - “HIN
BLIRYET (Zrgel’sy S| %USE | 9EEE8TT S | %ISE | 9EGE8ZE s |ooove'ss ¢ |ooovz'sa  $| sdd | sesT# VILNIAISTH NON - 1INAY - INGWIDYNYA Q3N - HA
9£'788'8T poe0rTO  § | %eBE | T8VOLDE S | %TBE | TBWOLOE s [oozez'os  §|o076208 S| S3 | seesi —17NQaY - 140ddNS ALINNWNOO - HN
ZU9TT0E 885/8'6E  § | %v'8T | VELEGETS wrsz | veLEEsT  $ | 007600L S| 007600L S| SH | ECESTH | TYILNIAISTY NON - 1INAY - INFWSSISSY - HIW
8E'€66'6T Z90vELL  § | %S6E | IEOZE'BE  § | %B6E | TEO/GBE | Q0VEBL6  § 00vERL6 S| SHN |vizesT# dX3-L1NAV-AdVEIHLOHOASd INJILYdLNO - HA
00'SSETE  $ | 000BZ'9ST § | %oy | OOWIEEL § | %y | 000N 6T & | 00'SEC'86Z § | OD'GECS6C § | I | TESTH " 31va-11NAV-AdVHIHLOHOASd INILYALNO -HA
Trees 88999 $ | %E'Sy | vEERS %8Sy | yYEER'Y ¢|ooossor ¢ |o009sOT | sS4 | ozesT# ~ N3ZYAUHO - HLNOA - INGWSS3SSY - HA
20'S61'ST T869TS9ET  $ | %0'Sy | 6v8SC'89  $ | %0'Sv | 6v'85z89  § | 00°TILTIST § | 00TILTST § | SN |vere-sia dX3-NIHATHO-AJYH3HLOHOASE LNJILYALNO - HIN
Tr9e’s |ssostzs  § | wrvv |wwSeo'sz S “%vvy | v'S60'9T $ |oost8'es  $|007188S  $| Sid | 6TESTH 31va-NIHATHO-AdYHIHLOHOAS LNAILVdL 1LNO - HA

pu3 Jeaj "~ pugzaeap "o |ped N 9% | paisanbay B "~ jesyuo) adAl | #199ys JOIAN3S

Sujujeway ET B PeUo) 910 291A18S o o B
Iﬁﬂ»uv‘_.ﬂhm—.. .—.-.Wauw._ﬂﬁn.—l ok - o“‘m_.D..Gm juaung 4 . - - B i = B

- ) ) o o B ~ vreIM -

HLTV3IH |_<N_O_><Im_m_ >m_|_._<> an1g

€2/TE/TT NYHL
YZ-€CAd
AUYYIINNS NOILYZINILA LOVYLINOD



_41_

TrOCySIl  § | 9ST65S98 S |WEEV | BLTSSWly S |%Uvv | SLS6LTEVS | 00TIOT8E S| 00CIOTE 5 _ - - -
ﬁ ! x 1910l = _ g e
000000t $| - $ (%00 | 000S %00 | 0003 000000 § | 000000T S| S3 31Vd-1INAV-AdYYIHLOHOAS INJILVdLNO - ans
OSEITTVT  $| 0SOVY'SS  § [%L0T | S29LvTeTs %8V | SToTL'6T $ | 00%09°00z $ | 00009007 §| Sdd |vib-OEH 17Nav-S3y WH3L LHOHS - ans|
v885CTL | 9TOEVTCT  $ |%9TE | BOBIZISS %9TE | 80°8TZ'19% 00SG9'E6T  $ | 00S6I'E6T §| S | MIAW|  TMVNGHLIM IN3I LVdNI GFHOLINOW ATIVOIdaW - ans
voT6L'8 S | 9E'80CT $|w09 | 8TH09S %0'9 | 8T'P09 5| 0000000T  §000000T  $| SH4 S INWSY TvILNIAISTE NON - 11NAY - INJWNSSISSY - ans
szTeizr & |p6009v S |%z9r | (EWOE'ECS  |%e9¢ | [Bv0eecs | 0008’88 | 0070888 S| Si3 AONIDHIWZ-LINAY-XOL3A VIO0S - aNS
(08720'980) | 08968'SE9  § |%S'6L | OvBYELTE  § |%S6L | OVBYEUTE  $|00TLE'66E  $ | 00TLEGEE §| SN |EEV-OEH AONIOHINZ-LINAY-ILIdSTY HLTYIH WINTW - aNs
ooov0'eL  §| Tslwoo | - §|%00 - $|ooovo'sL 6| 000WO'EL  §| SH | zevOeH i 1INaV - 1VILNIQISIY ILVIGIWYELINI - ans
00000'S. | - $ %00 - $i%00 - §|00000's  $| 00000 §| SN |oEE-0eEs "SANNH X314 AONIOYINT - HA
R $ |%00 - §|%00 0005 - s| - $| S4iN | TEE-OEH AONIOYINT-LINAY-3LIISTH HITVIH TVININ - HW
pu3 Jeap pu3g Jesj % pled % paisanbay _ 19RIUOD adAl | #3199Ys 30IAN3S
Sujujeway aujg B - 1ERUE) g0t} EETIVEES . o -
~ payaloid paraloid ) %005 | weuny i - o -
i B | - 2] - -
. .. I.:<m_I |_<N_O_><Im_m m_OD_N_m 3HL

€2/1€/TT HONOYHL

Ve-€ECAd
AYVININNS NOLLYZITILN LOVYLNOD




_43_

_ _ I = _ _ . - R - -
VTOETPST  § | OLEITOT  § |%6T | SEIEL'SS  |%6T f S TET'SS 0000v'PLT  § | 0000KTLT  $ 4 |viol -
0000ZT8  $ | 000009 $ |%v'E | 00000€S  |%r'E | 001000°ES |ovo0z'zs  §[0000¢78  §| SHN | dwgddnsy "~ S34 NON -LINAV-LNIWAOTdINE G3180ddNS - NS
vZ'9E6'T8 S | 9L'EITD $|%vc | 88TIETTS .x,: B8'TET'TS 0000228  $| 0000248 | SdIN |dui ddnsy ‘S34 NON |_..._Do<.n_.km_§.>o._a_>_m Q3Ld0ddns - I_>_
~ puzJesj puzsesp | % |  Ped paysanbay Penuo) adAL | #199ys JIIAN3S
~ Bujueway Juma | = 7 nenuo) ~ w0 aa1n1ag i . i - T B
" poyalold papalod | ] B || %0 0s | quaun) . i -
. i _ | YZ-€2Ad
- — _ "
| | TIMA009
» - | | - -
€2/T€/TT HONOYHL
VZ-€ECAd

AYVINIINNS NOILVYZITILN LOVHLINOD




_42_

'60'902°8€5 $
'00°000's s
(or'ess’eT) S
00'2€62T 3
8TTET'6 $
00°000°S $
95'505°€ s
(8z'L2L'TT)
voveL'vst
9711989
(vre98's)
'8T'Ze8'0T
OV0E6'TT
00°8LY'EVT
00'656'8C
00°000'S
71'958'7C
THTEETT

$
5
—3[
$
5
)
$
$
3
3
s
$
5

(zgLis't)
00’8809
05°£0L°€2
(z8'v8e E
08'SE0'S
puzleap

S
3
s
S
$

“Sujureway
vﬁu&o&

| 09'6v8'8C

| z8'099'99T

26797788

97°€88'€T
00'967°CS
wIeT
py'585°9T
82°899'4T
9L'6Y6'ET
YL6ETYY
YrII6'69
L1999
09'TS6'ET
00°96£'50T

8806125

9T'PIv'EE
I8'EvTTeT

0508607

02'6L6'6
pu3 1ea)

Pomaon

s
s
s
s
s
s
s
$
$
s
s
W.
W.
s
A
T
s
S
s
$
s
___Lsi
s
s
s

%STE
%0°0

%y6TT

%T'TT
%00
%ETY

T %t
%961
%785
%90V
%1'9Z
%TTZ
%00
%00
%SVE

%00

- %Ter

%EES

B

w96

"00'86£°CS

%6SE

%00

%LTE

uu.v ¢w

YT rES'ST
88'7L6'9

T0L7279°T9vS

£9°T6'TT
00'8v1'92
98'GSY'T

TLT6T'8

i Bt e s 0

v v

L8'6TT°CT

Rzal

um.._"..n_u 1

TT'956'VE
98'€EEET
08'SL6'TT

Pr'560'97

S0°ZEL'DT

WA W W W N 0

Vi

STO6Y'07

Ti'O€E" mw s

09'686'7 s
pred

%TTE

%0°0
%611

%ToY

C%ETy

%T'Cl
%00

T %926

%T'Y

%9'6T

%285

T %90v

%1'9¢

%TT

%00
%00

%8VE
%6°GE
%00
%L 6T

%EES |

%00
%LTE
% v9

%TEE

%

%0°0S

W10l

|_<_._.Zm_D_mm_m NON - 11NaV - >n_<W_m_I._.OIO>wn_ ANTILVLINO - DDm

T
OVTETTYVS | 00'ELV0ZY' T § | 00TLVOTYT $
- $ | 00'000'S s | 00°000°s $ | sdd
Foipel & | 000000 § | 000000 ¢ | sS4  |Wssvans
ToogyTez  § | o0'szz'sd & | 00Berso § | SHN | BLv-ss#
98'5SP'T s | 00'vPOTT $ | 00'7P0'ZT S S44 | sLp-Ss#
1 - "~ ¢ | ooooo's $ | oo'000's sl sad
TLT6T'8 s ooTe0'oz  § | o0te0'or  §| sdd ZLY-SSH
YT PEB'ST s|ootwevt | 00TYES s | SN | TLv-ss#
| 's8'v6'9 S| 00vZo'89T S| 00W/9'89T  $| S4d | OLpSSH
[2'6TT7c $ | 00LT6TIT  $ | OOLIELIT  $| S4IN | vSp-SS#
TT956'vE s | ooev00s  $|o0'Bb0'09 5| S3d | ssessH
"98'EEEET $ | oo00sZs 5| 00005.S S| S L1€-S5H
08'SL6'TT s | oozes'sy  $ | 00'z88’sy ¢l sa 9LE-55#
00°86€'CS ¢\ ooviz'sve S |oovizevr  §|  s3d GLE-S5H
- s|ooess'sc  §| 0065687  $| SdAN | £Le-SSH
- $ | 00'000's $ | 00°000°s s sn -
Wee09r S | oozwo'se S| oozvo'se S| s 7LE-SSH
08'v Vv T $|ootst'or  $|oOTSTOY  $| sS4 yLE-SSH
- I s| - T 65€-554
‘a0'zeL’st s |ooese'ss  §|ooesers 5| s 8GE-G5#
T67TL0TS $ | oo'ges’viT  § | 00'995% $| s4dN | ose-gs#
| 008899
1 szost'oz s |oossovs  §| - s sdan
Ty0SE'E8  $ | 00'9LEBTT 6 | 0000SL°85T  §| S4dN | SSE-SSH
09'686'75 00'STO'ST S |o0STOST  $| sS4 poe-as# |
paissnbay | penuo) adAL | #199ys |
12B1U0D Buo ELITVEDS
wu3un) I
| |

WILNSAISTd NON - HLNOA - LNIWSSISSY - dns

IVILN3AISI ZOZ 17Nay - INBWSS3SSY -ans

yvOSs -ans
|_<_.rzmo_wmm NON - PJDD( .rm_On_n_Dw \r:ZD_z__zOO ans
m_.wé. HLNOA >n_<m_m_I._.OIO>mn_ .rzm_._..<n_._.DO ODw

Fwn: >OZm_ON_m=>_m 11NAv- wDZDu_ Xm.._n_ DDW

1nav - .._(_._.Zmn__wm_m_ =3QHOSIa vNa - DDw

IVILNAAIS3YH NON - 1INQY - ._.W_Oan_3w>mm_>00m_w_ ans

._<_._r2m_n__wm_m NON - 1INAV - LINIWIDYNYIA NOILYOIdIW - I_>_

._.._DD< ._.N_On_n_Dw.>._._Z:EEOU I_>_
|_<_‘_.Zm_D_wmm_ NON - 17nav - ZO_._.<._._|__m_<Imm_><D I—z

_.n_DO< ._.Zm_S_.—.<m_w_.r>.._._ZD§§OO m_>_.rmmmw< I_2

SANNZ X374 AONIDHINT - HA
" 31Va-HLNOA-AYEIHLOHOASd IN3ILVAINO - HI
S1vH-LINAY-AdYETHLOHOAS INTILVALNO - HA
.Sao<kzm_>_mmmmm<xs_

IWILNIAISTH N
17NQY - WILN3AISTY ¥3aH0SIa TV NG - HA
~ NOILVLITIEYHI3Y TVILNIAIS3Y OIHLVIHOAS - HIN

_.||_30< .rm_On_&Dm>mm_>OOm_m HN
~ HLNOA mmZO&wm_m SISIHD - HN

._.._DD< m_wZOn_wmw_ w_w_w_o I—;_._

?uzmwm_ms_m_ ._.n_Dn_< m_Z_J mﬁ.m_w._O.W_DOI vZ - HN

- ~1INAV - LN0ddNS ¥33d - HN
EBILYER

ve- mN>m

m_._.Z_On_mm_.er_O

£€Z/TE/TT HONOYHL
vZ-€CAd
AYYINIININS NOILYZIT1N LDVYLNOD



_44_

AYVININNS NOLLVYZITILN LDVHINOD

— |
UEIo6ET | Ov8aY98 & |%0ET | OCVYI'EE  § |%OET | OTVYTEE $| oozot'9s  § | 00T0T'9ST S | w10l -
d : D [ . = _
09€TS68T & | OvBBY'9) S %Ol | OCYyC'EES  |%O'€T | OTYWC'EE  §| 000195z $|0070T'9se  §| SH | ISvses ~ YILN3AISTY - 1INAV - 3SNOH AVMATYH - ans
pu3 Jeax pu3 Jea % ped | % paisanbay 1IB1U0) adAl | #399Yys§ - ERITYES
Sulneway Suiyig | PLETENT S0 ERTVENS o -
papalolg ..uatw.._.o._m R B %0°0S uauny -
i - _ i - ) vT-€TAd
__ _ | . 3dOH 40 S3SNOH
— 4 .7 1 H ﬂ - B —
m | | = I
| | | -
€2/TE/TT NYHL
ve-€CAd




_45_

LE'965°0PT

6L0TL'Y
00'ZEL'TT
00roT
v0'5L9'S
pOgIr'TL
(8L296'Y)
¥ 06Y0T
TrZ0L'ET
{60'987'ST)

¢6'T00'€6

pujieaps
Fujueway

ml.

s
S
$
$
m.

B
s
s
E
$
$
$

papalord

] |
~ _ | _
OTTer'LlL | %8y | £9'L9L'8SE m._ %g'by | 65°0TL'8SE ¢ | 00TSE'008 $ | OO'TSE008  $
- s | %00 - $| w00 - sl - s| - ET
77'8L0'Y §| wrer |OUBE0ZS | We€C | TU6E0TS | 00'66£°8 $ | 00'66L"8 s  sdd
- $| %00 |0005 %00 | 000$ 00ZELTT  § | go'zELTt  §|  S3d
- T §| %00 - §| %00 - $ | oovot $ [ oo'vot $1 SN
96'€89'7 $| worr |e6TvETS T %97 | 8ETPETS 00'6SE0T  $ | 0O'BSEDT S| SH
9E¥TZ'T s| %ev |erzoss | %ev | 812099 00°€€9'ZT S | O0EE9TT S| 544
gi9IT86 S| %LTS | 668S06P §| %LTS | 6€8S0%6y  § | OOVST'E6 | oovsT'Es S| SddN
ol ocaryios S| weee |vES9TOr $| %86E | 8TBOTOW ¢ | 00z0600T $ | 00£0600T S| S
ogebiet S| weor |ogwigL S| %L9T |08wisLS | 00TSv'eC  $ | 00TSHEL S S44
6060572z S| %OES | vSYOLETT $| %IES | YSPILELT s|ooevz'zic 5| ooerzeiz §|  Sdd
756/8'65C  $| %Tv9 | 9L6EEGTL | %LPY | 9L6EE6TT s | ooevz'zor  $ | 00EwTTOT  $| S4AN
80ESL'ST  $ %80T qmmhwﬁm T wsor | vS9L8TT ¢ | oosss'8TT  § | 00'SSL'BTT $|  S3d
E._w ._ww.., % n_an_ % paisanbay 1JBI3U0D | adAl
T Bumpa ) B o i | wenuod T 3u0 ESTINEL
~ pawaloid T ) %0'05 uaun)
__n |
) S : _ |-
- B B ) ._ . |

Nm.m-ON&

6EE-0TH

8EE-OTH
LEE-0TH
SEE-OTH
€e€-0TH

“YIEE-0TH

TE€E-0T#

#199ys

Iv1i0L

HLNOA - AdV4IHLOHOAS INJILYdLNO -ans
- 17NV - INJWSSISSY - HA
-HLNOA - LINJWSSISSY - HN

~ SANNA X373 AONIOYINT - HW

1INV - INSWIDYNYW Q3N - HWN

HLNOA - LNIWIDVYNYIN QTN - HN

"dX3 HLNOA - INJWSSISSY - HIN
~1INAV - AdVE3HLOHOAS INLLYLNO - HN
HLNOA - NOILVLINSNOO OILN3dVH3HL - HA

" (DIA) 31VY - HLNOA - INIWSSISSY - HW
dX3 HLNOA - AdVHIHLOHOASd IN3ILYALNO - HW
“HLNOA - AdVYIHLOHAOSd INJILVdLNO - HA

ADIAY3S

vIETAd -
‘DIOSIdOH

£2/1€/2T HONOUHL
Ve-€CAd

AYVINNINS NOLLYZIILN LOVYLNOD




_46_

97 LTL'ZE  $ | PLTSE90T S

000000 S|

00'0000T $ a

00'0000T  $ h

‘oo0000T S

06'5.LT 5| OTL0BGE §

(vo'gs0’s) | vwvT08 S
pu3 Jeap pug Jeaj

" Buueway Suig

" papaloid pavaloid

%€ 8E

%697
%V'9s
%

LB'SLY'ESS

S5 EOV'ETS
TETLO0VS
" pied

|6t '8E

689y

%LESS
%

%005

_ _
[8SIv'Es  § | 00G99'GET $ | 006ITGET § ] ‘__..._E.OP
000000T § | 0000007 $|  S# |
Toooo0'0r ¢ |ooco0or §|  si _
0000001 $ | 00°000°0T $ S
Toogooor $|oo0000T §| S
SSEOVETS 00€85'8T S| 00'E8S'ST $|  Sd4 agy
ZETLOOYS 00'980'TL $ | 009807TL §$| S HS
paysanbay Peiuo) adAL | #199yS
== Penuo) ‘Jup 0IMIBS |
uann =

~1Inav IN3LLYLLNO -HW

140ddNS ALINNWAOO - HI

NOILVLIIEYHIY AVa - HW
gvHI S3H HOAS - HW

pieog g Wooy TVILNIAISIY TNDIS - HA

IDIAN3S

ye-€TM

S3DIAYIS HLTVIH TYHOIAVHIE A3LVHOILINI

IVIINTAIS3Y FHNO3S - HW

€Z/TE/TT NUHL
vZ-€CAd
AUYINIAINS NOLLYZITILN LDVHLINOD




_47_

AYYWIAINS NOILLYZINILN LDVILNOD

~ I _ | = . | - =
(vo0) $ | vo'000'0s  § |%0'05 005z § |%0005 | CO000GZ  $ | 00'0000S S | 00000°0S  § _ [Ivi0L B I
L = 05 _JiEiRaoing = 1 L = L i _ .
(vo0) ¢ 7000005 & |%00S | Z0000%6T § [%0005 | 0000'SZS | 0000005 § | 00°000°0S § | SHIN | E8SSL 4 17NAV - NOILYDI-ILNIAI "80¥d - NOLNIAT™d -dns
T puasesx | puisesn | % |  Ped % paisanbay wenuoy | adAL | #3%3us | ADIAYAS
 Buieuiay ETC I - B ) "~ penuo) ‘840 a01nI3s - - =
pawafoid | popaford | | %00s R [ el | — _ _
B B ) . | [ _ fTuM ] - - ]
) i # dIHSYIANLYVd NOILvONAdd TvOIA3N NTOONIT
- — _ i = _
€2/1€/2T HONOYHL
VZ-€CAd




_48_

TLTESECE S | 6LVESSEY S |%TOE oTToLLvES  |%TOE | STZ9LLPT S | 00950%618 S 00950678 § ) “|TvioL
000000 S| - “¢lwoo | - $|woo  |oo0§ | 000000T _ $|00000001  $| S33 |0AdOdNS WILNIAISTE NON - HLNOA - AdVHIHLOHOAS IN3ILVdLNO - aNs
aozeezt & |vevesL S lwver | LUge®  $ |%vel | /ULee®s | 004ETOZ  $|00ULECOL | i | L9509 B ~ IVIINIAISTINON - 1INAV - SINIWSSISSY - ANs
(95966%6) S| 9596661 S [%000T | BI'BG6'6S  |%0'00L | BT'866'6S '00°000°0T  $ | 0000001 §| Si Hu3ddans IvILN3AISTd NON - LINAY - 1SITvI03dS ¥33d - ans
129187 s|sLtsvse ¢ |%oLv | T600WT S |%OLv | 06°060T $ | coo0o'ce | 00000'0E  §| Sdd | 195094 TVILNIQIST NON - 1INAVY - IN3ILYdLNO SAISNILNI - ANS
raers ¢ |swerser & |Wels | vGOSTEL  § |WeLE | PE9SCET S| 00TI0SE  $|00ZIOSE S| i | 0CS0%% TWILNIQISTH NON - 1INAY - AdVHIHLOHOASd INJILVdLNO - ans
SLTYE'ST  $ | LS9 §lwrz  |owe st T9LYE §|oogeo'oT 5| 0O'BEO'OT S | SddN | TBE-09K - 1INAV-SaNN4 X314 - HA
soisces & | wwierss S |woLz | eosvoe  $ w0z | tL8Y9TE  §|00SSBOLT 00'558°07T  $| S4d | LLEO9H “IVIIN3QISTE NON - 1INaV - 140ddNS ALINNAWNOD - HA
(v '09€) Svrotoce  § |%z0S | LEOTOTY  $ %208 | LEOTOTHS 100099'T8 5| 00099T8  § | SN |VOEE-09H 35-534 NON-1INAY - 35 LNIWIOVNVA Q3N - HW|
OVSEOL | § | 96SVI'EL  § |%vVC | BETLS9E S %vpT | 862459 S| 00'0000ST  $|00°000°0ST S| Sd3 | 8ZE09H TYILNIQISTE NON - 1INAY - INIWIOVNYN a3N - HA
0THLS'S $|ogezy'e  §|wret  [06TLLTS  |NULT 06TILTS 0000001 § [ 000000T | si4 ltnoAdoRy TVIINTQISTE NON - HLNOA - AdVH3HLOHOASd INJILYdLNO - H
756860TT  § | BVEBOWOT  $ |%E6T VLTVO'Z8 S [MB6Z | L THOTES 00'§L0'54Z S | O0ELOSLZ S| S44 | 6TE09H | ST NON - L1NAY - AdVIHLOHOASd IN3ILVALNO - HIN
orie0’s  $ Clwost | osTeO9S  |%0ST | osTeo'ss |ooTeroy S 00TeTOr  §| Sa3 PssessvHW - IVILN3AISTH NON - LINAY - 1USWSSasSY - HIN
et $| = [vrTives |ws0e | weTite "% oo000'0z  §| 00000002 §| S44 juIId-HN| © IIINIQIS3Y NON - LINAY - LSITVIO3dS ¥33d - HN
puseaA |  puiJesA % pied % parsanbay VenUo) adAL | #199ys 30IAN3S
Bujuieway Sume | . | wenuod ‘o | @ss ) . - i
pawalosd paweford | | ~ | woos waLm - o - -
Py = i _ — = = ——— = -
wmo_>mmw >|=_>_<n_ Z<N_m_I._.D|_

€2/TE/TT HONOYHL
YZ-€CTAd

AYVINININS NOLLYZIILN LDVYINOD




_49_

_ |
. | ” | _ 7 ._ ) i .
| | _ |
s $ i $ s[ - $ $ _ S44 i VIEETH | 1InAV - AQOLSND FAILOILOYd AONIDYINT - HIN
z $ s $ . $| 5| $| s | roeeTH | 17NV - SAVA LNIWLINNOD 1SOd INIILYNI - H
$[ $ 1 - $ y HEE s - $| s | o9eETH | 17NAaV - NOILVZIV.LIdSOH LNIILVdNI 3LNOV-8NS - HW
- s — 3] 0005 | 0003 . $ $| sS4 | sseeTH 17NAV - NOLLYZITYLIdSOH INIILVANI 31NV - HIN
puz 1eap pu3 Jeap % pied % | paisanbay (vN) 12RI3U0D adAy #1934Ys mo_ AY3S
Suiujeway Sung | . . .. - _ penuoy | 30 221M98 o
paypalold paaloid | %0°0S papuawy

vZ-ETAd

| - : _

| _ | TV.LIdSOH ONINNYT ANV

m . | ] = - o |.
|

€2¢/1€/2T HONOYHL
ve-€CAd
AYVYINIANINS NOILVYZITILN LDVYLNOD




_50_

] - “ _ | . ._ r
| [ _. ".. _ "
9ZTEETOY  $ | YU'600'66S  $ |%B6C | LSVOS'66T S (%86 | LSWOSB6Z  $ | OO'EOY'E00T § | O0'EO'E00T $ | w101 -
0000y $ | 00000°6T S |%90v | 00°005'6% %90y | 00°005'6% 00'00v'EZ  $|0000v'EC  $| Sd&N ] S34 NON -1INAV-LNINWAOTdNT d3LH0ddNS - ans
ooeoL'zzt S| - $|%00 | 000$ %00 | 0003 0060221 §| 0060LLTT  $ | SdIN | _ Y34 ¥OLVOIAVYN ATINVL - ans
OBSCTTL S | PTEBV'OTT  § |%o'Sy | LSTVT8SS  |%9'Sy | LS'TvT'8SS 00602271 $ | 00%602'22T  $ | S4AN | _ V3 HOLVOIAVN ATINYS - HA
00707 s| - $lwoo | - $lwoo | - $ | oovot $ | 0001 $| SddN | 90e-s9H | SANNH X314 AONIOHINT - HA
#9°960'9€T S [ 9€'OVE viY |w %€ °8E 8T0L1TTT S X_m.mm. 81°041'72¢ $ | 00°LEY'08S $ | 00°LEY'08S S| S4dN | TOE-S9%# |S3H NON-LINAVY-SHH 2 43N0 ZO_WN_M\I/_D I_H_._n_mo_]_ ~H
9E'8SBYCT S | vO'SET6T S |%L9 | ¢8T6S6 S %L | 18656 $[00vwOvbT S| 00VPOPYT  $ | S4IN | 00E-59# S34 NON -L1NAay-LNIWAOTdNT G3LH0ddNS - HA
" puzJeax | pumzedr | % pied % | paisanbay _ | wpenuoy | adAL | gisays | ) JOIA¥IS =
Suluewsy | duyg " enuod | 810 | @apuss |
pataloig ‘payalodd | | %005 uauN)
i | - YT-ETAd. -
] | . NOILYIOOSSY HLTV3H TWININ
— | _ ﬁ 1
| |
€¢/TE/TT HONOYHL
ve-€CAd

AYVINIIAINS NOLLVZITILN LOVYLINOD




_51_

= I I T
- . N _ _ -
(r96TSLT) § | 09TSL'LELT $ |%TV6L | YBBEETELT § %S6T8 | 0RZLEBITT  § | O0'TOS'STY'T $ | 00°T08'Sey'T § W10L - -
Byiovee  § | Tevi96T § |%8S'EL | 9TLEBVIS %8S'ET | 9TLEBWILS 0096179 $|009€TZ9  § | SN .
8y I9v'ee  $ | ZSWLI'6T  § |%BBET | 9TLEBVIS %BYET | 9T'LEBVTS 009ETZ9  $|00'9ETZ8 | SN | 352d3 ~ AON39YIW3 - 11NQY - 35 NOLLYZIIBYLS SISI - H
(0L616's57) S | 0cLzy'vze  § |%v1'69 | SEELZTOVS %169 | SB'ETZTOVS 00'80S'899 § | 00'805'899 S | SN . ) ~ AON39¥3W3 11NQY - NOILVZIIBVLS SISIHD - aNS
TETEZYL  $ | 89 'B0L'ST  $ |%BT'9T | VE'WSS'LS %8192 | PEVSR'LS 00'000'0E  $ | 00'0000E  $ | Sdd 5 LINWSSY 1INQY LNIWSSISSY NS
s $ | vrv8s K TTT6T $ | zzzee $ 1004 | s |teseTH IN3ILVANI - 1INQY - SAV LNIWLIANINOD 150d LNJILVANI - ans
BLZIST  §|CrSIST S |%CTUE | TOUSTT S |zeTe | 19LstT S 008207 $ /00820  § | SN |€9E-ETH SQNN4 X314 ADNIDUING - HN
= $|espevioer  §| | 98089 S| 97'£80'89% 100d 1004 “s4d |z9e€1# | IN3LVANI- LINAV-SAVA INIWLININOD 1504 LNIILYdNI - HAI|
-~ ¢l 00%66'65 S |%66'€6 | vO'GIOESS $ |%0000T | O0'E66'86S S 00'€66'865 S | OU'E66'B6S  § | SIN |ESEETH |  AON39¥3W3 11NGY - NOILVZITIBVLS SISI¥D - HIY
pu3j Jeaj pu3 Jesj % pied % paisanbay 10RIUO) adAL | #3199ys m_U_>~_m_m
~ Sujueway Fuypg N 12B1U0) 3u0 20185 B i -
popalosd umuum_.e:_ o = %005 waun) ) B
i o | . | _ ) vT-ETAd N
B 7 m_.u._._.Zm_O m_m_mo HLTV3H |_<._.Zm__>_
§ = = ~ | | _ il
— —
€2/1€/7T HONOYHL
ve-€ECAd

AYVINIAINS NOILYZITILN LDVHLINOD



_52_

PrSTE Y8y
00'9TL'0vT
00'TVI'ZE
05'765'SL
TE0LYVET
(ar'oto?)
9E'15'T
TF505'T
pug JeaA
Suueway
payaloid

w:m:ﬂ vE VN N V)-l'V\ v

95°€05°7C¢C
00'87t'1€
05 TIL'TTT
89°S6T°L

9T°09L°L
Y9VEQT
85°€5L'ZS
pu3 JesA
Buyg

payaloid

%6'L1
%0°00T
%00
%00
%8'0€
%ST
%00
%519
%00
%9'6T
%98

8L°GL6°9TT

00'8py'TES

00°0%

62°558'09
¥8°265'€

"80°088'E

7EL18

6LILE'DT
pred

$

$
3
o
5
$
$
s

%6'LT
%0°00T
%00
%00
%8'0€
%S'T
%00
%S'L9
%00
%961
%98y
%

1

%0705 W

w _
8L'GL6'9ZT $ | 00'6vYLOL  $ | OO'EVYLOL S _
00°'8bY'TES 008rrTE  $| - $| sdin _

00'9TZ'0Ovz  $ | 00V9TZLT $| S |
- ¢l oozwr'ze $|o0TelTE | S3d | LesOmH
Mwwﬂo‘m\‘\w 0090€'26T & | 0000€'26T $| S | 88S-0T#
8'L65'E $ | 00999'T¥T  $ | 00999'THT  $ | Sdd Bm.o;f
- s - ¢ SN | €85-0TH
80°088'¢€ S i 00°0SL'S $ | 00'0SL'S S| Si4 T85-0T#
- $| - s| - $| 44 | 08S-OTH#
7€°L18 sloozoty ¢ |o0zat'v  $| SdIN | vBE-OTH
'64°9L£'9T $ | 00652'%S S| 006ST¥S  $ | SN | €6E-0TH
"~ poysanbay _ 1R adAl | #3994s
| 1oe41U0D) U0 ADINIBS
L) |
| |
_ |
1 1
_
{ i
_

V10L

E.wEn_c_m>mD ‘Ryoeden esnop AemjieH - ANS
“YSM-8snoH AemjieH - NS
3S-¢ S3-17nav- WINOD o_h:m_n?im__._._. ans

m<|_DOm_m K VSM- ._.n_DQ< |_<_l_.Zm_D_wm_m W31 1t ._.N_OIw ODw

YSM- w.m_w_ ._.._DO< >F_ZD_>=>_OO O_FDm_n_dR_m_I._. ans
hwov >Ozmomm_5_m_ _.._DD< wm_ZDn_ X374 - ans

J1va- _.n_Dn_< >n_<mm_I._.O|Im>.wn_ ._.Zm__._.<n:.DO n_jm
S3d NON - 17N@V - L¥0ddNS >._._ZD_>=>_OO DDm
SANN4 Xm_|_n_ >OZm_ON_m_$_m_ I__z

._.N_On_n_Dm >N_m_>OOm_w._ ans

ERITYELS -

YZ-€TAd

S.VOINOW LS

€Z/1€/21T HONOYHL
vZ-€CAd

AYVINANINS NOILVZITILN LOVYINOD




_53_

_ _. , | __ _ | _* _ = -

N — - . * _ : m |

_ - _ —
98'¥EE'08 _ yTVOS'EIST S [%88LY 8075906 § |%88'LY 7 £0°T52906 4, 00'6ER'E6B'T  $ | D0'6EB'ECE'T m_ | TYLOL
006L9VTT S | i [ _ T LA S34 NON - 1INAV - SFOIANIS WNOO JAISNILNI - dNS
008668 S| - s - , _ | oosvee8 S | co'sr6'68 m | 17NAV - 3SNOdSTY SISIMD - NS
96790, S| VTBEL'BL S |%OET T zreve’se Iw. %9E°9T B “G9E'BE $ | oogoEshT  $ _,S,mmmdﬁ S44N | pTY-SE# i S3¥ NON - 1INV - 140ddNS >mm>oomm o:w
. _ _ . \:\.\1* - $ | _ _ ~ S3d NON - LINQV -1vdiNY Ld0ddNS A¥3A003 - NS
(CTTESTYT) S| CU'886'S8P  § |%IBOL | 90'WEE'THT  $ |%IBOL 90ve6eve  § | DOLST'EVE .J 00LST'SVE  $ | SHIN |ESE-SEM S NON - 17INAY - STDIAYIS WAOD JAISNILNI - HIN
(BLELET)  §|8LTSTTC  $ |%OEES [ 68060TL S |%OEES a 68'060°TT 3 4 00°808°02 0080807  $ | SHIN |oee-se# | ~ saNN4 X314 AONIOHINI - HIN
00'¥86'S $ | 00056’ S |weeT | 00's62$ |%e6vT | 00 SL6'TS | 00vEE'TT $|00PEETT S| SHN |WnoAHd B . ~noAd0
(C0'6ES'ILT) § | COGLB'SBE  $ |%L1T6 | OS'6E6Z6T  $ |%L1'Z6 _S 6E6'Z61 m_ao,gm.mow s | ooove's0z m S4iN | gze-se# 17nav - 3SNOdS3Y SISIHO - HW
I $ _ _ | S34 NON - 1INQV - TvaNY 1¥0ddNS AYIA003M - HIN
VEE09'S8 & | 99°98T'68T  $ |%EVVE | EE'EVIVE  § |%EVYE 7 £€'EV'V6 $ _ 00968YVZZ | 00968VLZ  $| SHN | vIESEH | S3d NON - L1NAY - L40ddNS AYIAOOTY - HIN
29'8ze'bE | ZEOBY'SYS S |%8vLv | BTOWL'ZZES  |%BYLY gToVLZZE S | _ 0060L°6L9  $ | 00BOL'6LS % i SiN | €TE-GE# | 17nav - 140ddNS A LINNWWOD AONIOYINI - HN
pug Jeap T puzsedn | % pied % 7 paisanbay FRETS T adAl | #1993yS m0_>mmw 3
Sujueway ETII: [ . FELTHIT R 7 30 | aamuas
pajpaloid paysafoid %00 | 7 wanun) [ ,
: i . _ .
_ . | | YZ-ETAd
| | —— :
| _ L | (3dOH 40 S3SNOH) OSVL
i 1 | 7 mEE—— -
| 1 1 =TT=- =
_ | | _ m
£¢/1€/TT ysnoayl
PC-€CTAd

AYYINIIAINS NOLLYZITILN LOVYLINOD




_54_

; _ = _

0E900Ly  $ | 0L0LvToT  § |%8'BE SESETT8 $ |%B8BE Tm "SEZ'18 Q0 LLY'GOT $ | 00'LLY'GOT $ i TE.OF

= 4 !
0£'£89'8€ $locor'zat  § (%Y or SE'SET'I8 § |%VOF 7 GE'SET'I8 00'¥ST'I0Z | oovsT'TOZ §| S44 | 9Sv-Sed J(E.Zm*n__wm_m ._.1_30< |_<_._.2wh=wmm_ _>_N_m._. 1HOHS - -ans

;
4
:|
!
1

00'EZE'S s - TS %00 - $ |%00 00'EZE'S _ o0gze’8 | Sd4 [L9E-GEH | - 17nav - SaNN4 X314 AONIOHING - HI
pu3 Jeap pu3 Jeajs % pied % | paisanbay ﬂ_u:cou adAj | #3199YS JOIAN3S
Sujuieway ) m:____n I ) PeIUO) ERIVEL -
popaford | %005 | weum , _ I
) . . | _ [ vZ-€TAd

|
~ 1 | 7 _ (3dOH 40 S3ISNOH) INOLSHONOL

€2/1€/2T HONOYHL
vZ-€CAd
AUVINIAINS NOILLYZITILN LDVYLNOD




_55_

99'7S6'7C S
z $
99'ST2 $
00'6€L'2C §
pu3 JeaA
Jululeway
papaloid

YEVLO'ET S

- S

PEVLOET $

.. W
puz Jeap
Sung
paaloid

%181

%00

%6y

%00
%

LT'LES'9

LTLES'D

pled

$

$
$

z

%T'8T

|%0°0

%L 6

%0'0
%

%005

LT'LES9

LT'LES9

paisanbay

51

O0'EET'E $ | O0'EET'IE § |
|

00v0T  $|00%0T  $

00'067'€T § | 00°06T'ET $

00'6EL'TC $ | DO'6ELTT $

JeIU0)
pequoy | ‘Buo
uauan)

S44N
S44
S44

adAl

ESTYEN

vie-cT#

TIE-CTH
otTe-Ci#

#399YS |

V101

17NV - SONN4 X314 AONIOHINT - HW
(AINO 8 % ¥) WILNIAISTY FUNO3S - HN
TYILN3AISTY FANO3S - HW

3DIAY3S

VIETAd

ENNAEREN

€Z/TE/TT HONOYHL

Ve-€CAd

AYVYIWWNS NOILYZITILN LOVYLNOD




..56_

%191 7 00'£LT'69 $

_
!
A
‘|

_

00'9v9'162 w._ 00VSEBET  § |%T'9T | 00LLT69  § 19 ico..ooc.omq $ | 00°000'0EY 4 |wvioL - ] )
81°56¥'S8 $ _ TTY00CT 5 [%z'0T | TT'C00'TTS %e'0T _ TT'Z00T1S , 00'00S'Z0T ¢ | 00°005°£0T ans ; ans woddng ssaujjep Alanosay - 10lid
| SSaU|[SM
_ _ _ _ _ Alon0d9y ) .
77051907 Lwn_mqm.w:. S |%0o'8T | 68vLT'8S  $ |%0'BT _mm.ﬁdmm m__ 00°005'CCE m__oo.oomﬁm .L S4AN | HN | HIA Hoddng ssauepm Aleacoay - 10lid
ssau|jlaM
. _ | _ | Asanoday _
.n:m.hmw>| vcu = % ~ pred % _, paisanbay _ . _ henuo) _ adA) _..#uww_._m _ mO_>M._.mw )
mc_c_n___.umm uE.__E _ _ | JIBIUOD ; 20 d 30IADG | _
paysafod paislold - %005 | _ waun) | I _ * .
4 _ | | YZ-€CAd
_ _ .“ i 4
| | | T AAILYILNI ONIFETIIM
= § _ _ = L - A
| | I — =
| _ _ _ _ _
€2/1€/2T HONOYHL
VC-€CAd

AYVIWINNS NOLLYZITILN LDVHLINOD




_57._

ve-€ECAd
AYVYINNINS NOLLYZITILN LOVYLNOD

_ T
g [— | |
09 TIBZVET S | VEGTLYESE § %897  LILSELBLT $|%LTY  BS9LEUGLY ¢ | 00'600's0L'a § | o0'soL'288F S [TVLIOL -
ooosz'es s | - $|%00 - $ %00 - $ | ooogz'sd  § | 00°0EL $ B Buluies | UojeuIpiood 10D - HIN
(00'1£9'€) $ | 000002 §|%LTL 000009 $ %L 0000009 $ | 0069€8  $ | 00'6IE'B $ SNOILYINdOd VI03dS - HI
00'8£0'0C $ | oooteT $|%rs  00sSTT ¢ %z's  00SSTT $|oossecz | o08seTe 5| ~ NOILIVOD SV10 - HW
25'L8S'LE $ | 8rzsr'E $lwzy  vToTLT $ wry  ve9TL't S| ooovo'ty  $ | 000VO'TY $ JuvD GINHOANI VWNYAL - NS/HA
9TBLI6L $|vgoocor  $|%6LT  TYESE'S $ %6LT  IVESE'S $ | oooes'sz  $ | 009EB'6Z $ AH3A003d / 3OI0A HIWNSNOD - ANS/HA
BTELS'E $|zotiv'se § |%9Sv  98'S0T'6Y $ %9'sh  9B'SOT'6Y ¢ |op'sze’L0T  $ | 00'SZE'S8 $ (OM) SHIHONOA ONISNOH a3.140ddNS - ans
boS00GET & | OviLzzS & |%LEL  ELBET9T  § %LEL  ELBET'ST  § | 00EBZIEL S ooegz’oLz ¢ SNISNOH A3180ddNS - ans
00'00561 $ [ oo00s $|%eT  ooosz $ %1  000SC ¢ | 000000z $ | 0000002 s | ONINIVYL N NOILNIAIHd - aNs
0Gc8T'e0z & | OTOBS9TT ¢ |%T6T  SO'S6T'Ed  § %6l  SOS6CEd  $| OD'9LLTEE S| O0OLLTEE  § SNOILIMYOD NOILNIAZAd - aNs
(8Trze'z)  $|8TB99LT  $|%9T6  YIVES'ET ¢ %976 VIVES'ET ¢|ootre¥t S| 00TY6'E $ (siepinoid [18) SANNA XT14 - -ans
Z8' 14201 $ | 8rzenT S |%0°L 60'T€8 S %0°L 60'TES $ | 007E6TT S oo.nmm\: S (s1apinoid ||B) ._.Zm__>_._.__>=>_oo ._.wOm o:m
ey s |8L0090T  $|%U6  6EO0E'S ¢ %I'6  6E00ES $|ooszo'ss  $ | 00'sz0'8S $ ONINIVYL ONIMIIAYILNI ._<zo_k<>_ko_>_ -ans
8.69€'99T ¢ | ZTO00'Er  § |%€0T  TT'00STT $ %€0l  TL'00STZ ¢ | 00'0LE'60T  $ | 00°0LE'60E $ | ONINIVEL AdVHIH. 1 Iv40IAVHIE vOILO3TVIA - ans
ZUsLTTey $ | 8TT08'IE $ %16 ¥I'TO6'ST $ %16  YITOG'ST $ | 00°9L0VLT m_oomhoq.: g ONINIVYL ONIMIIAYTLNI TYNOLLVAILON - HI
QL69E€'99T  $ | Zz000'ER S |%E0T  TT00S'TZ $ %E0l  TI00S'TE $ | 000£'%60z  $|000L£'60  $| ONINIVAL AdVH3HL TVHOIAVHISE TvOI 103vIA - HA
- s| - ¢ |%00 = $ %00 - S = S| ﬂmhm_u:,oh& &) IN3ILVANI m._.DO<m_Dm HA
00°L¥8'EST S, & $ |%0°0 - $ %00 = $ | 00°LY8EST L 00°Lv8'EST | (s19pin0id 1) INIILVdNI 3 1LNOVY - HN
ZE068'6T  $ | BIWWE'ST S |%LOT  VETUEL $ wlor  vEuL6'L $ | 0o'ses'6z 78 <€8'67 $ | - 3NO ¥Od SNY1d - HIN
889T0WSE  $ | CVELE'S  $ (%80  95°986'C $ %80 95986 § | ooooo'09e  $ | 0000009 | SHHQ INO HO4 SNYd - HN
00'S9V'EE sl - m.xoa = S %00 - $ | oo's9p'Ez S | DU'SOV'ET $ NOILVHOILNI HE - HA
I %9L€  pL008WOT  $ | 00TZ0BLZ S _ . uopuSARld - WIa L HOUS N T B
%865  8L°/08'STT  $|00TL9LLE §| yinoA aby uonisuel j
B %E00 0098699  $ | 00'6ESOIIT § | [eUOlIPEIL =
(vEsrEED)  $ | ¥8LEG000T § %095 TE'BOVO00T § %99S Z6'BIP000T § | 00Z8Y'LILT § | O0TEYLOLT $| SWYHD0Md ¥INLHV TYNOISSIA0¥d - HIN
00°5959¢ ¢ (oooovt) ¢ |%oT-  (ooooz) $ %07~ (0000£) $|oosor'se ¢ |oosor'sE  § NOILYOILIN ¥SI aYOTaNY - HA
ZSTEL'S ¢ | 8y IP9EIT S |%9Ly  PLETR'IS $ %9'Ly  YLET8OS $ | 00'6LE'STT  § | O0'LGE'EL $ (vL) ONISNOH a3 140ddns - Is_
(OFZE6'sT) S | 0EW6TIEB  § |%T'8S  ST/pY'STy & %U'8s  STLy9STy 00LSE'STL  § | 00°LSE'STL $ (dvd) ONISNOH d3140ddNS - _.__>_
oTZISHOT  $ | ¥809T'8E $ (%901 Tr080YT ¢ %90  ev080'YT $|ooecozer ¢ | ooeozEr 8 (s1apinoid _.._.m..u.lwoz:u. XT14 - HA
(zs'EsE62) $ | zeVLI9ET S |%L'€9  9T°L80'89 $ %L€9  97'(80'89 ¢ |ooTze'eor  $|ooTesoor  § | ?_mnsen_ l12) LNINLINWOD LSOd - HN
pujleax |  pugJeaA % | pred | % i paia penuoy | JOIAN3S
u_._“_..._s_.-._mm. Suypg i Pesjuo) ‘Sup [ B
pa1aloid payaloid | | %005 | juaun) |
. 7 V ve-€TAd -
- __ S3DIAYIS IAIMNOIDIY
| | |
_ | |
€2/1€/T1 HONOYHL




_58_

%1 'LE 16'869'TLS'L § | 00°60V'62V'0TS .o.o.mowﬂvale W.H\._.O._. -

STTT098C'S S | C8L6SEVT'ST § |%T'LE  T6869TLSL $

00500567 § | 866bDIUSy § [%O'SE  66TTTLITT § WO'SE  GEPILLLT | 00OTIEEH'Y § | 00'9T8'SIED  $ ) SADIAMAS 3SN FONVLSENS

OTTSTSEE'E | YBLVE0090T § |%0BE  TE'ELY00E'S § %08E  CEELVOOE'S § | 00'GGTOEGELS | 00'EBSEOTYT s - SIDIAYIS HLTVIH TVLININ
puiseax | puieaA | % | pled % paing ‘Penuo) ELTNEC =]
Sujuieway Sulg Pesnuo) 810

"~ papelod | pewelond %005 | waun) - N - . -
| .- ) - © pz-ECAd o =]

__ | SW3LI 3NIT IOIAYIS TTV) SWILSAS A NOIOTY
| | ] )

€20¢/TE/TT ySnoiyL
bT-gTAd
AYVINIAINS NOLLYZIILA 1DVHINOD




_60_

(a1monys uodn poarde 199w j0u pip) Ae[dwodyy
(uorsuayxa paroidde ou yym) a1e 11
(uotsuaixa paroidde yim o Suilj U0) JUasa1d -X

%0 T 900 | 9%e8 | %8S | %56 | %T6 | %t6 | %06 | %001 | %98 | %86 | %06 | %S6 | %L6 | %68 |ied % suedwo) 3o %
6¢ (44 4! 8¢ 19,4 LE 187 v (474 9¢ (44 187 44 LE 8¢ an(g [e30L
8T 8T V/N 14 8T 8T 8T 8T 8T 8¢ 8T 8T 8T 8T 14 paAYY spoday Aroede) APRap eAne[IINY
11 4 4! 14 S 6 £l el 14! 8 14 £l vi 6 ol paroadxy siwouwmooq
ST ST ¢ (44 It 143 8¢ LE (47 1€ v LE oy 9¢ ve WL, WO PIAIINY [BIOL
SL 11 VIN 6 LT Y4 ST 144 8T €C Lz ¥C 9t LT 4 poarooay spoday Atoede) APjeap 2Ane[OWN)
o1 4 ol €1 vl 6 €1 €l 1 8 ! €l ! 6 8 POAISOY SIUBWINGO
JUSUGSIAUID Y /AUSWIOURYUH IIAIIG
(yz0z sung-Arenuef) are)) Jo uondaoiod
(¥'20T PoreN-Arenue() Malasy Afend
1€ Amng
S[erua(] pue so[qI3ijau]
SUI00INQ AI9A0IY
syuaprouj [eonuy) 23 seaddy ‘seoueAsun/siure[dwo)
VN VIN | VN V/IN JUSUNSIATINAUIUIOURYUT STAIOS
(€207 19qWR29(I-1990100) M31AY AiTfenQ
= Z 02 |22 | 2C | P2 | 52 | B2 | 2 = =0 o T | 58 [90F
: | 2| 95 |5 |33 |:2& |22 |%:|S8| = |[Eg| £ |52 |§% |Eg8
& S | g |82 |5 |25 (25|28 |28| & |E%| § |28 |Z2:s|52¢8
2 S | o |E5| %2 |55 |82 | s|2c| 2 [32| & |EE |55 |25
= =8 s 3 = Ea 18z e -3 . g £% EF |RR &
55 g 5 | § 2| 8|82 =% T @ =
T | = . i 87 = )
= = =
yT-€T Ad

LIOdTd INFNIDVNVIN




_59_..

speruaqy pue saqiBauf|og MdY
VN sawooInQ A13A093Y
syuspiou] [eonuy) % sjeaddy ‘soameasnnysimedwo)
VN V/IN VIN V/N JUOUISIATIY/JUSUWISOURYU IIAISG
VN (€20 19quua03-Ajng) 21e)) Jo uondadiad
(20T 10quiadog-Aing) moraay Afend
1€ uef
s[erua(] pue sa[qISHau]
V/N SawodInQ) AIA003Y
sjuoptou] [eonL)) % spaddy ‘sastreAsLID)/sjure[dwo))
VIN X X X X V/IN X X X X X X X X V/IN 1517 S101001L(] JO preog Aowady| 1 AON
V/N X T 1 X VN | VN | VN | VN X X X X X VIN JUEOUIISIAUIS Y /JUSWIIUBYUH IJIAIG
X X X X X X X X X X X X X VIN X (€207 2unf-ludy) morasy Aend
T X 1 X T X X X X X X X X X T s[erua(J pue s9JqIsyaul| 1€ 100
X X * X X X * * X X X * X X V/IN sowooInQ A19A00
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X 1 sjuoprou] [eont) 29 speaddy ‘saoueAstin/spmedwo)
v o | v | v | e | v | VN | VN | VN | VN wN | VN | WN | VIN | VN (v7 &4 - fmouo Apuarmo {[e) spenuodqng| 1190
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X spemoy| ST 9ny
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X sompayas 294 v7 Ad| 1 AInf
X X VIN X X VIN X X X X X X X V/N  [eouemsu] "qer] O ¥ 1A
X X X X X X X X X X X X ¥ |oouwemsuy Apqery 19940
X X X X X X X X X X X X X [pouemsu qer [euoissJoid 1op1a0Ig Aq
X X X X X X X X X X X X X [oouemsuy -dwo) y10Mm AIqULIEA A1 SOWAANDIY
e anJ QoueRINSU] pue
X X X X X X X X X X X X  |soueinsu] ‘qer] YaA 010N SIUSUOIRIS [BIOURUL] PANIpNY
X X X X X X X X X X X X X  [|sowemsuj Aifiqer [e1ousn)
X X X X VN [uawme§ [eIouRUL] paupny
- = @ ™o - (]
2 | 5 | B2 | 22|53 |39 |5% (%8 |28 | % |2E| 3 |iz|::s|ied
5| E |85 |g%|°% |58 82| 2|22 & |¥F| g 2% | L% (2L
w [ — —] —
SE = | F 3 2| 232 g | B e "=
= 3 ® & @ & - 1=
- m [ T L | ﬂ..“v._ w

¥YT-€T Ad
LYOdAT INTNIOVNVIA



80% Attendance Report for FY 23-24

_61_

As of 1/1/2024
. ] Regional Quality Improvement
Network Provider Meetings g Quality . P
Team Meetings
Network L
Provider 5 5|5 5 5% 3 o b
=|2|5|2|2|z| & MERHEEE T | o= g
2|E(2|E|E|5|E|5]= z|E|2|E|E[s|E[5]|= S 2 £
zwa3?825;=>2»w33?8§s~'=>2 > S <
s|3| |2l S|Pl ® alSlsllEl1=21a12]lel2ls]|2 Sl alsS = < A e
21212828212 =[Sl EE|<|d|olzlalS|e|S|<|S[S] = 3 X
ACT X AlX A 2 4 50%
Blue Valley X XX X 4 4 100%
The Bridge X X|X X 4 4 100%
CenterPointe X XX X 4 4 100%
Goodwill Ind X XX X 4 4 100%
HopeSpoke X XX X 4 4 100%
Houses of Hope X XX X 4 4 100%
IBHS X XA A 2 4 50%
S EHieTRn x| |x|x X 4 4 | 100%
Family
M.H.A. X AlX X 3 4 75%
MHCC X X|X X 4 4 100%
St. Monica’s X XX X 4 4 100%
TeleCare X AlA X 2 4 50%
*September Network Provider Meeting Cancelled 45 52 87%

**¥December RQIT Meeting Cancelled



_62_

Region V Systems
RGB Executive Committee Minutes
November 13, 2023
Following RGB Meeting at Region V Services
3600 Union Drive
Committee Members Present: John Caverzagie, Richardson County; Jan Lang, Pawnee

County, Gale Pohlmann, Jefferson County; and Christa
Yoakum, Lancaster County

Others Present: Patrick Kreifels, Regional Administrator

The meeting was called to order at 12:43 p.m.

Corporate Compliance Program — FY 22-23 Incident Report Summaries

Kreifels presented the “Corporate Compliance Program Summary Report” for FY 22-23, which
included an overview of the compliance plan, a summary of the incident/complaint reports, and
subsequent changes that were implemented as a result of the incidents reported. No further
recommendations were made by the Committee.

Interlocal Agreement Revisions
On 10/11/23, Pohlmann had e-mailed the Committee, Region V Systems, and Apace information

about the status of the joint Interlocal Agreement. At this meeting, Kreifels discussed next steps
in that Region V Systems will start to collaboratively work with Apace to bring forward a
recommendation to the Executive Committee regarding a revised (separate) Interlocal
Agreement for both agencies.

2024 CAREF Site Visit

Kreifels reported that CARF will be conducting its site visit in the March/April 2024 timeframe
(specific dates yet to be determined) and that usually the surveyors ask to interview the Board
chair. More details to follow once the site visit dates are known.

Other Business
RA Report of Activities through 11/3/23: This was provided for the Executive Committee’s

information only.

RA Address at 10/5/23 All Employee Fall Rally: This was provided for the Executive
Committee’s information only.

Next Meeting: 2/12/24, following regular RGB Meeting

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:14 p.m.

Page 1 of 1



Region V Systems (RVS) Quarterly Report
October 2023 - December 2023
Kalli Fandrich, CPSS

Li tasks ted/mi es hit thi arter:

e Planned and held the “rural” Behavioral Health Conference (BHC) in Otoe county.
e Began planning WRAP I and II seminar after assessing needs from the community.
e Provided ongoing Support groups in a variety of settings.

Assessment of Need/Problem Solving:

e Consumer Family Advisory Committee (CFAC): Continue to identify and outreach
consumers and family members to increase membership and inform them of funding
options. Continue to develop and distribute a quarterly newsletter.

e Lancaster County Behavioral Health Conference: Begin planning the Lancaster
County Behavioral Health Conference. Identify speakers and presenters from the
community to help facilitate educating the consumers of the conference.

e Training: Assessed the need for a WRAP ( Wellness Recovery Action Plan) Seminar 1
to train consumers in developing a Wellness Recovery Action Plan. Plan and execute a
WRAP Seminar 2 training consumers to facilitate WRAP groups within the community.
Plan a Peer Support Training for Region V Consumers.

Projects:

e SMART Recovery group: Continued providing weekly SMART recovery groups.
Implemented a new group this quarter, for a total of 2 SMART meetings per week.

e CFAC: Continued to identify and outreach individuals and agencies that would be an
appropriate fit for CFAC membership. Continued to distribute the CFAC quarterly
newsletter. Continued to work with RVS Regional Administrator, Fiscal department,
CFAC Bylaws committee and funding committee to streamline the funding application
process as well as the Bylaws, policies and procedures.

e Rural Behavioral Health Conference (BHC): Implemented a BHC in Otoe County
with 51 participants. Coordinated one keynote speaker, a panel of consumers, and a total
of 6 breakout sessions covering topics such as Harm Reduction, SMART Recovery, and

Dialectical Behavioral Therapy (DBT) Skills.

_63_



Data Collected/Analyzed:

Current:

# of Peer Support Training participants- 0

# of WRAP Facilitator participants- 0

# of support groups- 17

# of support group participants (duplicated)- 270
# of committee/workgroup meetings- 12
Accumulative:

# of Peer Support Training participants - 0

# of WRAP Facilitator participants- 0

# of support groups- 23

# of support group participants (duplicated)- 402

# of committee/workgroup meetings- 28

Tasks/goals next quarter:
Continue working on the following projects:

e Continue advocacy efforts to reduce stigma and provide education in rural communities
e Continue planning Peer Support Training for Region V Consumers

e Continue planning for WRAP 1 and 2 Facilitator Training for Region V Consumers



Jav1 pue uj@suno)
|euoissajold 10M
1e190S ‘1IN ‘dHINT

80589 IN ‘ujodur]
3G uonewLIosuURl ] TZOT

1335009
Sumaiaialu| [BUOIIBAIION

‘wrd 00zt - "wre 00'8
yz0e ‘2t |dy

SWwa3sAs A uoiday

sSutuuar epualg

SI19pINOI] JJOMISN 93.4 /2 sndwe? uotieaouui sguiuuar epualg
sauor]  sufauag Aunaas joros fo
-xupuaH auyppen| mamang uy :noj Jof yiom wrd WOET - 00:ZT
Ajunwwio?) pup Siapinoid JI0MIaN 2344 V/N SwaysAs A uoibay| pue Jsww essiPIN SaAnualuf yJoM Buyow tz0z ‘Ot |udy
Burjesunod
|euOISSa401d “HJOM
121205 ‘1IN ‘dHINT luj0daluR) ‘IN‘d OE:€ - “IN'd 00°T
$13pIn0id jJoMIaN 2214 0'C wooz - JonUIA - Yaual dees| 1aysaiay Ynpv 0Z-v1d 70z ‘g I14dv
Jav1 pue Buipsuno)
|euoissajoid NI0M
a%_Sx_L (21908 ‘LN ‘dHINT Suiues) uoydwey) (IN) ‘wrd gg:g - “wre ammﬁ

._...n.ﬂf.‘

%202 ‘S 1dy

pajou SSIMISU N

5 SSO[UN BYSel’

(SN "UJOIUIT Ul P[ay 9¢ 03 SSulUre)

19J9Y wdpg:t - ‘wdo:zT
Apunwwo) 2944 Vv/N |enuIA wed) uonuanald| ‘spensiad ‘uolisany -4d0D 20T ‘8 Yae|
uijasuno) dueApe
|euolssajoid oM uj sAep ssauisng aAl SIIAIRS
1€190S ‘LJINT ‘'dHINT | 3n0 Juas uolelAul 3oono Aweg vesaying IN°d 00:2T - ‘WY 00°8
S19pPIA0Id JIOMISN 3314 0t ‘suies | JOS0IIIN BIA 3UlUD - ULIBADS DIIAY #ind 3npy 0Z-v10 207 ‘T Y21en
Buyjasuno)
[euoissajold YIOM Z0589 3N ‘ujodul]
[e190S ‘14N ‘dHINT 13235 Ynos oevt s33ug| W'd 00°2T - "INV OE:8
SJ3pIn0.id JI0MI1aN 2314 0'€ SHgI| ®UIOH '@ 11035 dlwef 1ind 3npv 0z-v1a| 207 ‘T Yy21eN
3ayodsadoH
- JISSDIN JI[DION ‘W'd 00°CT - W'V 00°TT
SI3PINOId JIOMI3N 3314 umouun wooz - jpnuipA|  pup UDWIDM DIIIY yano4 0Z-v1a 2oz ‘re Aaoniga4
Bujesuno)
|euossajoid FIOM
{erros 1IN ‘dHN a3 14 ‘urdpp:s - ‘wopo:g
Ayunwwo)| 3314 09 SwaysAs A uoibay| 143l pup oYdzny Jiif] IS4 Y3[D3IH [DIUBIA NPy yzoz ‘0z Aionsqa4
ELITEIN
Auunwuwod 10§ 0SZS
Bujpsuno)
SI3qWI3N wea] asuodsay | [euolssaj0.d IOM 80589 IN .:_8:_._1 wdpg:t - “w'eg:g
S|eUOISS?J0Id YI|BaH |elolARYag pUE sis1D) pue ‘yojedsiq 1e1205 ‘141 ‘dHIN JAlI uonewIOjsuRL ) TZ0TZ JUBWISSISSY 1By | vzoz
‘asuodsay sisu) ‘yoledsig acmeu._ovEm_u meq| ‘quawadiojuz me Joj 334 [o74 sndwe) uoieAouu| sijeads snouep yijeaH |esoineyag -y134) ‘9T Atenigad - €1 Asensqaq
aualpny 1981e] 350D sN1D uonedlo] Jajuasaid uonduasaq /didog _ sawil/a1eq

IV

sSujutes] Suiwoadn

swiaisAs A uoiSay




_66_

S{euolssaj01d YijeaH [eioiaeyag pue

sJaquIaw
Apunwwod Joy 6/

s19quis|\ wea] asuodsay
sisu) pue ‘yaredsiq

Buiasuno)
|EUOISS3J01d ‘NIOM
{e190S “14NT ‘dHIN

70589 3N ‘ujoour]
18315 |IIH 0TL
Jajua) Sujwaes

(v139) Juswissassy jeauyy

‘wed g:p-"w"e 008

asuodsay SISUD ‘Yoredsig WUDWDII04uT MET] JUSWD0I0JUT MET 104 3314 L |euOoISsa3044 UOL|D uod sioyeads snowep Y1|eaH jeloineyag YINoA 70T ‘TT 2unf]
Buijesuno) JueApe
|euoissajoid HJOM uj sAep ssauisng aAl SIS
1e1R0s ‘141 ‘dHINT | IO JuU9s uoleliAul YOO[InQ Ajjwey uessying IN'd 00:2T - "IN°Y 008
SIIPINOI] YIOMIFN 3314 o€ ‘Swea | JOSOUIDIN BIA UIUQ - ULIRA3S DAY 1ind 3npy 0Z-v1a 20T ‘L un(
Suiasuno)
[eUoIsS3j01d YHOM 20589 3N ‘ujodult
[e120S ‘LI ‘dHN 132435 Yanos 0T s33ug| ‘IN'd 00:ZT - "INV O€°8
519pin0.id }10MIN 3314 0'€ SHEI| @UIOH 7@ 130§ alwef {ind 3npy 0Z-v1a 20z ‘L dun(
Suiesuno)
|BuOISS240.1d HJOM
(e190S ‘LINT ‘dHNT 91ut0daua) ‘W'd 0¢:t - "IW'd 00°T
S13PINOJId YIOMIIN 214 0'€ |eNUIA - WO07Z| - Youal] Jees) ind YNPY 0Z-v1d 20z ‘€T Aeiy
SETE | ‘wdog:t - "w-doo:zT
Ajunwwo) 2944 v/N {ENHIA wea] uoljuanaid ‘apensiad ‘uonsany -44do 2oz ‘01 AeIN
Sunasuno)
|euolssajoid HIOM ayodsadol
[e190S ‘LI ‘dHINT - 3ISSDN J1|DION ‘Wd 00:CT - W'V 0E°8
S13PIN0.Id JI0MIaN 2314 0'€ wooz - [pnUIA|  PUD UDWDAA DY 1ind 3npY 02-v14 vZ0zT ‘8 Ab
Buyasuno)
|euoIssa404d YI0M
[e190S ‘LAINT ‘dHW PV “wrdgo:s - "w'npo:g
Ayunwiio) 3314 09 SWwapsAs A uotbay agi) Is44 Y3joaH [PIUIN YINOoA vZoz ‘91 j1dy
Jav1 pue Sujasuno)
|euoissajoid oM 80589 3N ‘ujooun
1eos ‘14T ‘dHW1 9ALIQ uopIRWIO)SURL| TZOT 1335009 ‘wrd gg:t - "wrd 0§:2T
SIAPINOI{ JJOMIBN ECIE| 2 sndwe) uoizeaouu| sSujuuarepuaig| Suimainiuy [euoneAIION 2oz ‘et |udy
dudipny 1981 150) sn3d uolie’oq 1uasald uondudsaq /odoy sawij/aleq

pajou aSIMIB (T

0 SSa[un B)Seiq

[9N "UJOdUrT Ul p[ay 9q 03 SSuluiel] |V

sSuluies] Suiwoadn

swalsAs A uoisay




_67_

[EIEY] hm‘so._—

‘wioolsse|) uolleanpy 11nay - sdnoig ‘wrd g£:9 - 0£:S
pasinbai uogessidal oN 499115 Y191 'S TTTc Ayunwwo) (dvym) ueid Jo "wd 00:S - 00°Y
EEIE| SUON sndwe) 1sap uelug ye1s yyeay uehig|  uondy A19A023Y SS3U(IPM shepsiny]
oA 19mo
‘Wooisse|) uoleanpl HLNOA - sdnoig
pauinbai uonensigal oN 193415 YI9T 'S ¢TCT Ayunwwo) (dvym) ueid ‘urrd Q0:Z - 00:9
Ajunwwo)) EETR| dUON sndwe) 159 uelug Je1s yyeay uelug|  uondy AIdA0daYy SsaUjlRM shepsany|
‘uoniedjdde
Suruiesy Jojey|oe) @ HwgnS
01 8ZANIDDIANNMG
HY9H/319'SW¥O04//:SdLLH U ‘wrd Q0 - "W'e 00:6
Ayunwwo?) 0109 QUON val] ‘ennemuiSuieqiap]  Suluies) Jojeirded dvdM €202 ‘01-9 Arenugag
$JY10 404 pasunouuy sdujuiel)
Anunwwod 10} 09¢S
SuiPsuno)

s|eu0ISS3j0.d YI|eDH |eloineyag pue
‘asuodsay sisu) ‘ydledsiq QUIWIII0T Me]

sIaquialy wea] Isuodsay
sisu) pue ‘yazedsiq
QUBWIII0JUT MeT 10} D]

[BUOISS3401d “HOM
{e120s ‘1IN ‘dHIN
0¢

80589 IN .c_ou:_.._ﬁ
3ALIQ uonewlolsuelt 10T
snduwie) uoieaouu|

sijeads snolep

JUBWISSISSY 1eady]
yi[e2H [eioineyag -y13g

‘wrdgg:p - "Wepo:s
vz0z ‘1 3sndny - 6Z Aing

Suyjesuno)
|euolssa304d “HOM
[e190S ‘LT ‘dH1

31U10442]U3)

‘Wd 0g:€ - ‘Wd 00°'T

$J3PIN0Id YIOMIIN 2214 0T wooZz - JDnMIA - Y2u3a.4 I0DS| 13ysaifay 3npy 02-v1a pzoz ‘g Any|
Suippsuno)
jeuoissajold HIOM
1e0s “LINT ‘dHN PlY “wrdgo:s - ‘urnQo:8
Anunwwo) a4 09 Sw3sAs A uoibay aqil Isud yyoay (MU 3NpY 20z ‘31 3uny,
aduaipny 1931e] 150D snN1d uoliedo J9judsald uondusaqg /ddog saw] /areq

pojou SSIMIB T

0 SS9[UN e)Serq

[SN "UjodulT Ul pjay 99 03 Ssulule.

IV

s8ujuieq] Suiwoddn

swaisAs A uoigay






